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1 FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON

It gives me great pleasure to present the 
Social Housing Regulatory Authority’s 
Annual Report for 2019/20.

The SHRA is mandated to facilitate the 
delivery of quality, sustainable social 
housing units at scale to advance the 
needs of low and middle-income groups 
in support of spatial, economic and social 
restructuring.  In order to promote an 
enabling environment for the growth and 
development of the social housing sector, 
essential policy amendments were made 
in the prior year.

These include the increase of the 
Consolidated Capital Grant quantum 
and the increase of the income bands 
for qualifying households.  The grant 
quantum and income bands had been 
static for several years, undermining the 
viability of social housing development 
and threatening the sustainability of the 
programme.  

The welcomed increases have been seen 
as a very positive shift in the sector and 
acknowledgement of the importance of 
the role of the social housing programme 
in transformation of South African society.

In July 2019 the Minister of Human 
Settlements, Water and Sanitation 
dissolved the SHRA board and the Interim 
Council was appointed to restore oversight 
and governance. The Interim Council 
would like to extend its appreciation to 
the previous Council members whose 
contribution stabilised the entity and has 
allowed the entity to be better positioned 
to support the social housing sector and 
tackle its important mandate. The SHRA 
has surpassed all previous financial year’s 
capital expenditure performance with 
almost 166% or R1.2 bn of Capital Grant 
was spent against the approved budget of 
R723 706 000 by the end of March 2020.

The work of the SHRA requires collaboration 
between all three spheres of government 
and the private sector in order to facilitate 
the social housing programme and we 
have continued to build relationships 
with our stakeholders within the period 
under review. We wish to thank these 
departments and organisations for their 
participation in a number of our activities 
in the period under review and their 
continued commitment to the social 
housing programme.

The entity’s achievement in the year under review could not have been possible 
without the efforts of the staff and management and Interim Council would like to 
thank them for their zealousness and commitment to the entity.

On behalf of Interim Council, I would like to extend our appreciation to the 
Minster of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation, L.N. Sisulu MP and 
Portfolio Committee whose leadership has enabled the entity to turnaround. 

We look forward to working with the Honourable Minister, L. Sisulu 
MP and the National Department of Human Settlements, Water and 
Sanitation in this journey of inclusive human settlements growth 
and transformation.

___________________________ 
B. O Dlamini
Chairperson
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Government is keen in the implementation 
of the National Development Plan. The 
year under review, ushered in a renewal of 
purpose and collective commitment to re-
ignite growth to strengthen the economy 
for a more resilient and regulated Social 
Housing Sector.

The SHRA management team has 
committed itself to the achievement of 
a clean audit opinion (unqualified with 
no findings). This objective has thus far 
eluded the organisation and management 
is presently engaged in a point for point 
analysis of the obstacles that presently 
stand in the way of such an outcome.

It has been of no help that, in management’s 
pursuance of higher production rates and 
levels of performance, especially in the 
area of social housing unit completions, 
this haste has brought along with its 
certain unwelcome non-compliance with 
laws and regulations thus resulting in the 
classification of certain expenditures as 
irregular. This irregular expenditure chiefly 
arose from the SHRA Council interpretation 
and application of a 10-kilometre radius 
to gazetted restructuring zones within 
metropolitan areas affecting two projects. 
Management was later advised that this 
approach would be found wanting as  
these two projects were located in zones 
that had not been gazetted. Management 
therefore elected to report this expenditure 
as irregular and to focus on regularising 
both projects by having the two extended 
zones gazetted. The process of regularising 

this expenditure was very advanced at the 
time that the annual audit was concluded.

SHRA performance has reached 67% in the 
period under review. Expenditure of both 
the capital and institutional investment 
grants has also increased steadily. SHRA 
increased expenditure on the Consolidated 
Capital Grant (CCG) to R1 202 831 411 in the 
period under review, which comprises a 
166% performance against budget.

The SHRA’s vacancy rate at the end of 
the period under review was 15%, with 
recruitment of eight positions currently 
underway.

In terms of the entity’s contribution to 
the NDP, through outcome 8 (Human 
Settlements), the SHRA managed to 
deliver a total of 13 968 (2014-2019) new 
social housing units against the MTSF 
target of 27 003 units, with an additional 
combined 21 750 units in the construction 
and planning phase. With the advent of the 
6th Administration of a democratic South 
Africa, post the national and provincial 
elections in May 2019, the SHRA managed 
to produce 3 044 units out of 30 000 units 
targeted for the new MTSF period (2019-
2024).

There are currently 103 fully and 
conditionally accredited institutions on 
the Register of Social Housing Institutions, 
of which twelve (12) institutions are 
fully accredited and 91 are conditionally 
accredited.

2 CHIEF ExECuTIvE OFFICER’S OvERvIEW

There has been a growing trend in number of units under regulation over the MTSF period, 
2018/19 was 36 305 and 2019/20 which is the new of term is 39 407 units under regulation. 
This shows significant improvement over the last MTSF period.

The Sector Development and Transformation programme has spent 73% of its allocated 
budget. Extensive social housing training events were coordinated nationwide during 
the period under review. These focused on training Social Housing Institutions (SHIs) 
as well as other stakeholders such as local authorities and black businesses.

Thank you to all our stakeholders for their continued support in the 
implementation of the Social Housing Programme.

___________________________

R. Gallocher
Chief Executive Officer



10 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 11 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

3.1 Mandate

The Social Housing Regulatory Authority (SHRA) was established by the National 
Department of Human Settlements  as prescribed by the Social Housing Act, No 16 of 2008.  
The SHRA is classified as a national public entity in terms of Schedule 3A of the Public 
Finance Management Act, No 1 of 1999 as amended.

The SHRA’s mandate is to capacitate, invest in and regulate the social housing sector.  The 
primary intention of social housing is twofold: firstly, to deliver affordable rental housing for 
low- to middle-income groups, most of whom do not qualify for free BNG housing but also 
do not earn enough to qualify for bank financing to purchase a house; secondly, to achieve 
spatial, economic and social integration of the urban environments in South Africa.

Social housing is a powerful instrument to address spatial restructuring, economic 
integration, social development, urban efficiency, urban inclusivity and good urban 
management. Social housing is Government’s primary housing product that is capable 
of achieving the desired densities to support spatial transformation.  There is a definite 
demand shift in cities towards rental accommodation which is expected to grow given the 
rate of urbanisation.

3.2  Vision

A thought-leader, stimulator and regulator of world-class self-sufficient social housing 
solutions. The SHRA’s vision is to see affordable rental homes in integrated urban 
environments through sustainable institutions. To achieve this:

a. The SHRA will be a world-class organisation resourced by highly skilled, values-
driven leaders in the industry; 

b. The SHRA will fund and facilitate funding for affordable, well designed, 
environmentally sustainable (energy efficient green) social housing estates;

c. The SHRA will ensure investment in communities that form new or regenerated 
cities, which in turn enhance social mobility and access to basic tenant needs for 
healthcare, education, transport and communication; and

d. The SHRA will be a thought-leader, stimulator and regulator of appropriate policies 
and research to support programme development for an African model of managed 
rental and social housing; and will create a self-sufficient social and rental housing 
environment.

3  STRATEgIC OvERvIEW

3.3 Mission

Facilitate delivery of quality, sustainable social housing 
at scale to advance the needs of low and middle-income 
groups in support of spatial, economic and social 
restructuring.

3.4 Values

The SHRA revised its values in the 2017/18 financial year:

3.4.1 Service/stewardship 
 We know that exceptional service is important, 

and we intend to go the extra mile to ensure that 
we meet the needs of our beneficiaries.

3.4.2 Zealousness
 We approach every day with a positive attitude, 

a willingness to grow, a thirst for learning and 
challenging ourselves.

3.4.3 Connectedness/interconnectedness
 We recognise that everything we do, comes 

about as a result of team effort and that by co-
operation with one another, we achieve results 
collectively which enhances our efficiency and 
effectiveness.

3.4.4 Accountability
 We understand that we serve the best interests 

of the citizens of our country, and as such we 
are serious about being held responsible and 
accountable for our words, actions and results.

3.4.5 Our employees are holistic human beings
 Our employees are the heartbeat of our 

organisation. Each one of them matters, 
they are valued, their opinion matters,
their contributions are worthy.
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3.5 Strategic outcome-oriented goals 3.7 The Social Housing Act, No 16 of 2008

The purpose of the Social Housing Act is to:

 y Establish and promote a sustainable social housing environment;
 y Define the functions of national, provincial and local governments in respect of 

social housing;
 y Provide for the establishment of the SHRA in order to regulate all Social Housing 

Institutions (SHI) obtaining or having obtained public funds; and
 y Allow for the undertaking of approved projects by SHIs and other delivery agents 

with the benefit of public money to give statutory recognition to SHIs.
 y The Social Housing Act, no 16 of 2008 provides the regulatory foundation for the 

social housing sector and sets the framework through which social housing is 
currently implemented, funded and regulated.

 y This act provides for the following:
 y The definition of functions of national, provincial and local governments in respect 

of social housing;
 y The establishment of the SHRA to promote, regulate and guide the investment of 

public money in the social housing sector;
 y Giving statutory recognition to, and regulating, SHIs; and
 y Providing for the creation of restructuring zones.

The Social Housing Act defines social housing as “a rental or co-operative housing option 
for low- to medium-income households at a level of scale and built form that requires 
institutionalised management and is provided by social housing institutions or other 
delivery agents in approved projects in designated restructuring zones with the benefit of 
public funding as contemplated in this Act”.

A social housing institution is defined as “an institution accredited or provisionally accredited 
under this Act which carries or intends to carry on the business of providing rental or co-
operative housing options for low- to medium-income households (excluding immediate 
individual ownership and a contract as defined under the Alienation of Land Act, No 68 
of 1981), on an affordable basis, ensuring quality and maximum benefits for residents and 
managing its housing stock over the long term”.

A restructuring zone is defined as “a geographic area that has been identified by the 
municipality, with the concurrence of the provincial government, for purposes of social 
housing; and that has been designated by the Minister in the Government Gazette for 
approved projects”. 

3.6 Legislative and other mandates

The SHRA derives its mandate from the following key pieces of legislation and policy:

 y The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, No 108 of 1996
 y The Social Housing Act, No 16 of 2008
 y The Housing Act, No 107 of 1997 as amended
 y The Rental Housing Act, No 50 of 1999 as amended
 y The Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), No 1 of 1999
 y Comprehensive Plan for the Development of Sustainable Human Settlements: 

Breaking New Ground
 y The Social Housing Policy, 2005
 y The National Housing Code, 2009
 y The National Development Plan 2030: Our Future – Make it Work

Strategic outcome-oriented goal Goal statement

To establish a well skilled, resourced and led 
organisation

To restructure the entity and develop new 
systems, policies and procedures by 2019 to 
enhance the performance and reputation of the 
entity

To support policy and sectoral leadership within 
the social housing sector

To provide thought leadership to the social 
housing sector to ensure sustainability of the 
social housing programme

To establish functioning and well managed
delivery agents/entities delivering units that 
meet
a landlord’s responsibilities to its tenants

To ensure suff icient capacity to develop projects 
and manage the 27 000 units expected to be 
delivered by 2019

To effectively regulate the social housing sector 
through a risk-based, automated system

To revise the accreditation and compliance 
system to a risk-based automated system by 
2019 that will allow for a more effective and 
streamlined regulatory system

To deliver social housing units that result 
in the restructuring of cities and integrated 
communities

To deliver 27 000 social housing units by 2019 
that adhere to the principles of the social 
housing programme

Table 1: Strategic outcome-oriented goals and goal statements 2015-2020
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The Social Housing Policy states that “the social housing programme has two primary 
objectives:

 y Firstly, to contribute to the national priority of restructuring South African society 
in order to address structural, economic, social and spatial dysfunctionalities 
thereby contributing to Government’s vision of an economically empowered,   
non-racial and integrated society living in sustainable human settlements.

 y Secondly, to improve and contribute to the overall functioning of the housing 
sector and in particular the rental sub-component thereof, especially insofar as 
social housing is able to contribute to widening the range of housing options 
available to the poor”.

3.8 Functions of the SHRA

 y Promote the development and awareness of social housing and promote an 
enabling environment for the growth and development of the sector;

 y Provide advice and support to the Department of Human Settlements in its 
development of policy for the social housing sector and facilitate the National 
Social Housing Programme;

 y Provide best-practice information and research on the status of the social housing 
sector;

 y Support provincial governments with approving project applications by 
social housing institutions and assist, where requested, in the designation of 
restructuring zones;

 y Enter into agreements with provincial governments and the National Housing 
Finance Corporation to ensure that implementation by these entities is 
coordinated;

 y Provide financial assistance to social housing institutions through grants to 
enable them to develop institutional capacity, gain accreditation as social housing 
institutions and submit viable project applications;

 y Accredit institutions meeting criteria for social housing institutions and maintain a 
register of such institutions;

 y Conduct compliance monitoring through regular inspections and enforce 
compliance where necessary; 

 y Intervene in the affairs of social housing institutions in cases of maladministration; 
and

 y Approve, administer and disburse institutional investment grants and capital 
grants.

3.9 Key policy developments and legislative changes

The Minister of Human Settlements, together with the Provincial Members of the Executive 
Council (MECs) of Human Settlements, approved adjustments to the social housing 
programme in June 2017.  These changes are as follows:

 y Lower income bracket moves from R1 500 – R3 500 per month to R1 500 – R5 500 
per month;

 y Secondary income bracket moves from R3 500 – R7 500 per month to R5 500 to 
R15 000 per month; and

 y The Restructuring Capital Grant quantum increases from R125 615 per unit to   
R155 000 per unit.

“These adjustments ensure that the social housing programme continues its focus on 
including the primary target market in well-located projects so that the poor are integrated 
into cities. These adjustments also ensure that more young professionals, or gap market 
will now benefit from government rental subsidised housing and for developers it means 
they have more funds to provide spacious and decent rental stock,” said Minister Sisulu 
(Ministry of Human Settlements, 2017).

The SHRA has effected these changes for all projects approved from June 2017 forward, 
adhering to targets for capital grant to black-owned and controlled companies.

In addition to the amendments to the income band and grant quantum, the MINMEC 
of June 2017 also approved the transfer of the newbuild option, under the Community 

Residential Unit programme, to form part of the social housing programme.
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Employees 53

Proposed
Structure 56

Consultants 3

Employees 50

Approved
Structure 53

Consultants 2

Additional
Positions

4.10  Structure of the entity

The Minister approved the SHRA’s new structure on 6 December 2016 and it was 
implemented in January 2017.  Figure below represents the structure as at the end of March 
2020. 

During the period under review, the SHRA Council identified that if the SHRA is to have a 
meaningful impact on spatial, economic and social restructuring, then it would need to 
adopt a precinct development approach whereby formerly African townships, for example, 
would see investment around commercial and retail sites to densify and integrate these 
areas.  The SHRA Council therefore resolved that the entity would investigate the prospect 
of creating a fifth Executive position in the SHRA management structure to spearhead 
precinct-based planning and development led by social housing.  
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4  PERFORmANCE OF THE ENTITY

Figure 2: Number of staff over the period (2014-2019) Figure 3: Annual performance rate over period (2014-2019)

4.1 Organisational environment

Through implementation of the new structure and operating framework, the SHRA has 
shifted to a more proactive approach in order to increase the pace and scale of delivery 
and assisting stakeholders to structure projects.  The delivery process, the procedures to 
register a project on the pipeline and methods to support projects on the pipeline have also 
been revised so as to enable increased stakeholder participation in social housing delivery.  

The drive to increase the headcount of the organisation and fill positions on the approved 
structure is illustrated in the following figure. The number of  staff had increased from 23 
employees in the 2014/15 period to 47 employees as at the end of 2019/20 period.

4.1.1 Enhanced performance of the entity

Figure 3 below illustrates the SHRA performance from 2014/15 to 2019/20. The period under 
review saw the SHRA slightly improving on the performance from 62% in 2018/19 to 67% in 
the period under review, which translates to 5% increase from the prior year.
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4.2 Achievement against the strategic outcome-oriented goals

4.2.1 Stimulate social housing delivery

Figure 4 below illustrates the number of units approved and completed over the MTSF 
period. The 2019/20 financial year has 4 816 units approved and 3 010 units completed. 
There has been an improvement of  726 units completed when compared to the prior 
year ‘s result of 2 284 units completed. However, the number of units approved was 2 840 
units lower than in the 2018/19 year with 7 656 units having been approved. There has 
been increased expenditure as a result of an increase in approved projects, however the 
production rate has not matched the increase in expenditure. The SHRA has taken active 
steps to cancel non-performing contracts and recover funds where grant recipients have 
failed to deliver and or comply with the terms and conditions of the CCG contract.

Figure 4: Number of units approved and completed over the period (2014-2019)

Figure 5: Number of Units under regulations over MTSF period (2014-2019)

Figure 6: Expenditure of the RCG/CCG over the period (2014 – 2019)

Figure 7: Expenditure against the IIG over MTSF period (2014 – 2019)

The figure above shows the growing trends in number of units under regulation over the 
MTSF period, in 2017/18 the SHRA recorded 32 046 units and in 2018/19 which was the end 
of term there were 36 305 units under regulation. The first year of the new term 2019/20 
saw a year on year increase of 8.5% in the number of units under regulation which was 
39407 units under regulation by the year-end. This shows a 92% increase in the units under 
regulation from the start of the 2014-2019 MTSF period.

The improvement in non-financial performance is mirrored in the improvement of financial 
performance. The figure below illustrates the expenditure of the Restructuring Capital 
Grant (RCG)/Consolidated Capital Grant (CCG) and the Institutional Investment Grant over 
the period 2014/15 – 2019/20.
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4.3 Performance information by programme

The performance tables, Annexure A, reflect the targets and achievement against these 
targets.

4.3.1 Administration programme
 This programme consists of two sub-programmes: Office of the CEO and 

Corporate Services.

4.3.1.1 Office of the CEO
 The purpose of the Office of the CEO sub-programme is to provide strategic 

leadership and management of the entity and sector.  The sub-programme 
undertakes research to develop best practice for the sector, to recommend 
policy changes to the Minister and Department and to support the growth and 
development of social housing.
 y Strategic Planning
 y Performance Information Monitoring and Evaluation
 y Policy
 y Research
 y Public Relations
 y Stakeholder Management
 y Marketing and Communication

Figure 8: Office of the CEO structure

4.3.1.1.1 Strategy, Research and Policy

During the 2019/20 financial year SRP managed to published three research studies on 
the SHRA website which are: Cost drivers of social housing development both Greenfield’s 
and brownfields, Community residential units (CRU) recommendation study and Impact 
assessment of social housing. The following studies are still underway:

 y Student Housing Proposal
The student hosing proposal was developed by the social housing regulatory 
authority (SHRA) in partnership with the housing development agency (HDA). 
The student housing proposal was meant to have served at MinMec during 
the 2019/20 financial year, however has been provided for the Minister’s 
consideration before proceeding.

 y Inclusionary Housing
The Inclusionary Housing research report and accompanying policy 
recommendation was tabled at the SHRA Exco in August 2019 and had 
subsequently served at the CAR committee in December 2019. 

 y Co-operatives and Instalment Sale Projects
A research report on the evaluation of past co-operative and instalment sale 
projects has been concluded. The report would be published in the SHRA 
website before the end of 2020/21 financial year.

 y Norms and Standards
The social housing norms and standards have not been included in the 
most recent APP2019/20 it is however a crucial item that requires careful 
consideration and is included as a key topic area that corresponds to the 
development of an affordable rental strategy. 

 y Development of an Affordable Rental Strategy and Policy 
In line with the policy reform priority of the 6th Administration of the 
Democratic Republic of South Africa this project is of paramount importance 
as it affords the sector the opportunity to revisit and enhance the Social 
Housing Policy (2005). This project started towards the end of the 2019/20 
financial year and it is anticipated that this project will be completed before 
the end of 2020/21.
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4.3.1.1.2 Marketing and Communications

 y Briefing of the Minister and stakeholders on the urban renewal programme

On 20 October 2019, the SHRA CEO was tasked with briefing the Minister 
(represented by the Deputy Minister David Mahlobo) on the urban renewal 
programme, specifically in the Joburg Inner City. The CEO did however, cover 
the national progress in his presentation. The SHRA presented a picture of 
how different stakeholders such as the Gauteng provincial government, 
NDoHS, SHRA, GPF, HDA, NHFC, TUHF, funders, developers, SHIs, and other 
role players have collectively contributed to the Urban Renewal Programme 
in the Inner City, especially in rand value.

Part two of the day was an address and engagement with stakeholders 
including the media, to update them on the urban renewal programme 
and to visit projects within the inner city that are playing a role in achieving 
the mandate of urban restructuring for the benefit of people in the low to 
medium income groups. Stakeholders had an opportunity to input on what 
they believe may be the game changers to assist to up the scale of urban 
renewal in Johannesburg and other cities in the country. Plein Street Social 
Housing Project, Kelvin House student accommodation, Jewel City precinct, 
as well as the Turfontein Social Housing Project were visited.

 y Hillside Social Housing Project Presidential Launch

The Social Housing Regulatory Authority (SHRA) is proud to announce that 
on 26 October 2019, the Hillside View Social Housing Project in Mangaung, 
Free State, was launched by President Cyril Ramaphosa accompanied by the 
Minister and Deputy Minister for Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation 
Lindiwe Sisulu and Deputy Minister Mr David Mahlobo. Also present was 
Free State Premier Ms Sefora Ntombela and Free State MEC for Public Works 
Infrastructure and Human Settlements Ms Agnes Koloi.

The SHRA awarded Kenso Developers a consolidated Capital Grant (CCG) of R 
178 528.839 which was in addition to funding from the Free State Department 
of Human Settlements and the developer’s own equity. The total cost of the 
project is R339 843 292,84.

The project has thus far yielded 402 completed units in Phase 1. Phase 2 of 
the project will yield 437 units which will bring the total number of units to 
839. The units in the project comprise of bachelor, one-bedroom and two-
bedroom accommodation. The housing development is located near social 
amenities such as schools, clinics, police stations and places of employment.

 y Dobsonville Project Launch

The Dobsonville project in Soweto, which features a total of 502 units 
and developed by JOSHCO was handed over by the Gauteng MEC for 
COGTA, Lebogang Maile, on 1 February 2020 in the presence of the City 
of Johannesburg Mayor, Mr Geoff Makhubo, beneficiaries and other 
stakeholders. The launch was well attended by the community and Media.

 y Human Settlements Indaba Exhibition

The SHRA exhibited at the Human Settlements Indaba on 6 March 2020. 
The stand was visited mostly by small developers who were interested in the 
awareness and training sessions and in becoming delivery partners of the 
SHRA. This was a great opportunity for the SHRA to highlight opportunities 
available in social housing and how one can participate in the sector.

4.3.1.2 Corporate Services

The purpose of the Corporate Services sub-programme is to support the activities and 
enhance the performance of the entity.  This sub-programme consists of the following 
functions:

 y Finance
 y Supply Chain
 y Legal
 y Corporate Governance
 y Risk Management
 y Human Resource Management
 y Information Technology and Information Management
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Figure 9: Corporate services structure 

4.3.1.2.1 Financial Management

The SHRA’s budget allocation from the National Department of Human Settlements, Water 
and Sanitation for the year under review amounting to R810 726 000 has been received in 
full, and the approved allocation was as follows:

•	 Administration     65 761 000
•	 Institutional Investment Grant (IIG)  21 259 000
•	 Consolidated Capital Grant (CCG)  723 706 000

 
4.3.1.2.2 Human Resource Management

The SHRA’s approved staff complement for the year ended 31 March 2020, is fifty-three 
(53). As at 31 March 2020 the entity had in its employ forty (40) permanent staff members, 
five(5) contract staff with 5-year fixed contracts and two (2) temporary staff members all in 
all amounting to forty-seven (47) employees.  As of 31 March 2020, the vacancy rate stood at 
15% which translates to eight (8) vacancy positions which would be filled during the 2020/21 
financial year.

4.3.1.2.3 Information Communication Technology (ICT)

In light of the COVID 19 outbreak all staff had been given access to 3G and VPN in order to 
be able to work remotely. The 2019/20 highlights are as follows:

•	 The close out for the procurement for a service provider to provide off-site data 
backups for a 36-month period.

•	 The near completion of the Case Management System.
•	 An improvement in the development and approval of IT policies as required by 

audit.

4.3.1.2.4 Supply Chain Management

The SHRA has a four-member supply chain management team that is responsible for 
ensuring compliance with the National Treasury Supply Chain Management (SCM) 
Regulations. During the financial year under review, the supply chain management 
function was carried out in compliance with policy and this SCM function was audited by 
the internal auditors. The current SCM policy that is implemented by the SHRA is aligned 
to the National Treasury prescripts.

4.3.1.2.5 Legal 

With the enhancements made to the SHRA’s legal capacity during the 2017/18 financial 
year, the SHRA was better able to attend to legal matters in the 2019/20 financial year that 
impacted on the National Social Housing Programme.  The table below provides an outline 
of some of the legal matters attended to during the course of the year under review:

CORPORATE SERVICE MANAGER

IT MANAGER

IT TECHNICIAN

FINANCE MANAGER

ACCOUNTANT

ACCOUNTS 
CLERK

HR MANAGER

HR OFFICER

OFFICE 
ASSISTANT

RECEPTIONIST

LEGAL MANAGER

LEGAL ADVISOR

SUPPLY CHAIN 
MANAGER

SUPPLY CHAIN 
OFFICER X2

SUPPLY CHAIN 
ADMINISTRATOR 

X2

DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT OFFICER EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATOR CSM

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CEO

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATION MANAGER

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATION OFFICER

STRATEGY, RESEARCH AND POLICY MANAGER

MONITORING AND EVALUATION
SPECIALIST

RESEARCH SPECIALIST

INTERNAL AUDIT



30 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 31 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Institution / Subject matter Status

Camel Rock Social Housing Institution and 
others//SHRA

Judgement was rendered in favour of the SHRA 
with a cost order against Camel Rock.

1. Minister of Human Settlements, National 
Department of Human Settlements, SHRA//
Premier of the Western Cape Province and 
others

2. Adonisi & 5 others//Minister for Transport & 
Public works & 11 Others

The matter was set down for hearing for 25 
November 2019 until 29 November 2019 and 
Equal Education was admitted as amicus curiae.

Emalahleni Housing Company NPC/Emalahleni 
local municipality and four (4) others

The SHRA is awaiting the dates on which the 
matter will be heard in court.

Tenants of Vukuzakhe Flats The SHRA was subpoenaed in terms of section 
13(3) (e) of the Rental Housing Act to appear 
before the tribunal on the 15th November 2017 
and we appeared again before the Tribunal on 
the 7th February 2018 wherein the matter was 
postponed sine die to allow the SHRA time to 
intervene.

The Entity did not get accredited and is now 
being considered for other inventions by the 
SHRA.

SHRA/ SALAMAX 434 NPC & NEDBANK An application for default judgment is being 
made by the SHRA. A letter has also been sent 
to Nedbank on 20 March 2020 for Nedbank to 
keep the account frozen in line with the interim 
preservation order 

Tenants of Highpoint / Wingprop (Pty) Ltd, MEC 
for Human Settlements, SHRA and the Rental 
Housing tribunal

SHRA have received a settlement proposal 
from Wingprop, which settlement proposal was 
rejected by the SHRA.

SHRA//Free State Social Housing Company 
(FRESHCO), NHFC, Mangaung Metropolitan 
Municipality,Free State Department of Human 
Settlements

The SHRA applied for leave to execute as 
provided for per section 18 of the Superior 
Courts Act 10 of 2013.The order to execute was 
granted in favour of the SHRA on the 11th March 
2020

Table 2: Legal matters where SHRA is involved

Figure 10: Compliance, Accreditation and Regulations structure

4.3.2 Compliance, Accreditation and Regulation (CAR) programme

The CAR Units had nine (9) APP targets to achieve in the 2019/20 financial year, and achieved 
five (5) of the targets while four were not achieved

A number of social housing units had to be accredited over the 2015-2020 period – the 
target for the year was 7 000 units to be accredited.   A total of 4860 were accredited 
resulting in a negative variance of 2  140 units. 8 project applications had to be received into 
the project pipeline by conditionally accredited first-time applicants- only 6 projects were 
received into the pipeline in the current year. 3 300 subsidised social housing units’ building 
condition audits had to be conducted – only 3 083 audit reports could be submitted by the 
end of the quarter.    

The number of fully and accredited institutions on the SHRA Accreditation Register 
increased from 101, recorded in the third quarter, to 106 institutions recorded at the end of 
March 2020.   However only 42% of the (38) accredited SHIs have projects in the pipeline or 
under construction.    The rest of the institutions are yet to record projects with the SHRA.   
This is a strong indication that the SHRA needs to review its accreditation policies such that 
credible SHIs that can deliver units are accredited.    
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Regulations

Tenancy Audits

According to Chapter 3, section 9 (Inspections) (2) in the Social Housing Regulations “the 
SHRA will conduct tenancy audits in order to ensure the targeted income groups are 
housed”.  For the first time since its establishment the SHRA conducted tenancy audits of 
all projects that are managed by institutions. During the period under review, (12) projects 
representing a total of 3 728 units with 3 557 units being included in the audit sample. A 
consolidated dataset that includes income information of 3 406 social housing units have 
been completed as a result of the tenancy audits.

Building Condition Audits

As per the SHRA Annual Performance Plan 2019/20, the annual target for undertaking 
building condition audits was 3  300 audits completed.  Out of 3 913 units commissioned 
for building condition audits in the 2019/2020 financial year, 830 were not finalised by end 
of March 2020, which means a total of 3083 audits were completed.   The annual target was 

not achieved and it is anticipated to be completed in the 2020/21 financial year.

None of the SHIs who applied for accreditation or renewed their accreditation status 
were recommended for full accreditation in this quarter.   There is growing evidence that 
the accreditation process, together with support provided to new applicants need to be 
reviewed and enhanced. The project pipeline currently has a total of 20 316 units, and with 
intensive and focussed project readiness support by the PD&F and CAR Team, the SHRA 
could see an increase in the number of projects and units accredited in this financial year.

Performance against the SHRA benchmarks improved slightly in the fourth quarter, with 
a growth in the percentage (61.5%) of reporting institutions obtaining three and more of 
the benchmarks.   This figure has risen from 54% recorded in the previous reporting period.

As part of its regulatory function the SHRA, through the CAR Unit conducted tenant income 
and building conditions audits.  Progress with both audits was delayed and, in some cases, 
foiled by external environment issues, including tensions between the SHI’s and tenants; 
and violent boycotts by tenants.   Information collated form both audits will assist the SHRA 
ascertain levels of compliance with primary functions of institutions i.e. rent setting, tenant 
allocation and building maintenance.

Accreditation

The number of fully and accredited institutions on the SHRA Accreditation Register 
increased from 101 recorded in the third quarter of 2019/20 financial year, to 106 institutions 
recorded at the end of the March 2020. Out of 106 institutions, three (3) withdrew before 
end of March 2020, 12 were fully accredited and 91 were conditionally accredited.
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Figure 11: Fully and Conditionally accredited institutions 2019/20

Figure 12: Fully & Conditionally accredited SHI’s per Province
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4.3.3 Sector Development and Transformation Programme

The purpose of this programme is to support the growth and development of the social 
housing sector as well as administration of the Institutional Investment Grant. It is responsible 
for the growth and development of social housing institutions and ODAs, transformation 
and empowerment of the social housing sector, assessment of applications for Institutional 
Investment Grants and coordination and management of Institutional Investment Grants.  
The Sector Development and Transformation Programme is responsible for the sustained 
growth and development of social housing while also ensuring that transformation is 
achieved.  Six (6) Annual Performance Plan (APP) targets were set for 2019/2020.  These 
targets relate to institutional and project support as well as transformation of the sector.  
All of these targets were achieved.

Seven (7) projects from five (5) incubation programme participants were added to the 
social housing pipeline in this financial year.  Institutional support provided to two (2) 
SHI’s were concluded and both institutions maintained their accreditation status.  Project 
support on four (4) projects were concluded and all four projects were recommended for 
accreditation.  Three (3) of these projects with a potential yield of 1 552 social housing units 
were accredited.  Project due diligence support was given to KZN Province to strengthen 
the provincial social housing pipeline and 27 potential projects with an approximate yield 
of 17 951 social housing units across this Province have been identified for further support, 
in collaboration with the respective municipalities and the Province.

Figure 13: Sector Development and Transformation structure

Work on the Social Housing Transformation Charter is continuing where more than 50% 
of grant recipients adopted the Amended Property Sector Code of the Property Sector 
Charter.  Specific codes for social housing on the different elements will be developed in 
collaboration with the social housing sector and the Property Sector Charter Council in 
the next financial year for social housing to become part of the reporting on the state of 
transformation in the property sector on an annual basis.

Approximately 73% of the allocated SD&T budget was spent during this financial year, with 
the remaining 27% committed primarily to project and institutional support currently in 
process.  Expenditure on direct support to projects is relatively low and must be increased 
going forward to achieve the 30 000 social housing unit target.  Similarly, expenditure on 
institutional support is low and must be increased to assist and strengthen the role of the 
SHRA as a supportive regulator.

The risks identified for SD&T in the previous financial year and emerging risks included in 
the upcoming operational plan for 2020/21 have been appropriately mitigated with control 
improvements identified and currently under implementation.  Internal audit findings are 
medium and low risk items but are also tracked and reported on with significant progress 
made up to date.

Other highlights include the completion of the Training Programme where more than 
600 delegates participated in fourteen (14) sessions on various topics, conducted in six (6) 
Provinces.

The SHRA also partnered with the African Women’s Movement (AWM) and Black 
Management Forum (BMF) and arranged an information session on participation in the 
social housing programme, specifically aimed at women.  This session was held on 12 March 
2020 and will be followed up with more detailed sessions on specific areas of interest in 
the new financial year, where focus groups will then receive additional information on, for 
instance, becoming accredited as a Social Housing Institution or submission requirements 
for project accreditation.

4.3.4 Project Development and Funding (PDF) programme

This programme looks at the methods of ensuring the SHRA delivers on the MTSF target of 
27 000 units.  Partnerships and coordination of the sector stakeholders in the development 
of social housing is imperative. The programme is responsible for pipeline planning, capital 
grant contract management, partnership with Provinces and Municipalities, partnerships 
with other Government departments, partnerships with other Funders to secure loan 
funding for social housing development and partnerships with the private sector.
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4.3.4.1 Units delivered (Tenanted)

The target for the 2019/20 financial year was 4 000 social housing units tenanted. The year 
to date tenanting for the 2019/20 financial year totalled 4 012 resulting in a year to date 
marginal positive variance of twelve (12) social housing units being tenanted.

Figure 14: Project Development and Funding structure 

Figure 15: Tenanting trends

4.3.4.2 Units completion

The target for the 2019/20 financial year is 4 871 social housing units completed.  Practical 
completion for 111 units (Q1), 590 units (Q2), 1 010 units (Q3) and 1 299 social housing units 
was achieved in the fourth quarter bringing the practical completion certificates to 3 010 
for 2019/20 financial year as detailed in the table below.  This means an annual shortfall of 
1827 practically completed units for the 2019/20 financial year.

Figure 16: Unit completion 2019/20

Figure 17: Unit completion trends 2014-2020
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The SHRA Council is committed to the highest standards of corporate governance, as 
defined in the PFMA and the King IV Report on Corporate Governance. The SHRA strives and 
makes all reasonable endeavours to implement the best processes and principles of good 
corporate governance to assist its Council in discharging their duties and responsibilities, 
which include the delivery of good services to all stakeholders.

5  INTRODuCTION

The Council of the SHRA, on a quarterly basis, undertakes regular assessments on the 
application, implementation and adherence to the Social Housing Act and its Regulations, 
the PFMA and King Principles. The outcome of these assessments reveals that the SHRA’s 
governance processes are well entrenched.

6  ASSESSmENT OF CORPORATE 
gOvERNANCE COmPlIANCE
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7  THE ROlES AND RESPONSIBIlITIES     
OF THE COuNCIl

The roles and responsibilities of the Council as stipulated in the Council Charter, include 
but are not limited to the following: 

The SHRA’s Council is appointed in terms of section 9 of the Social Housing Act by the 
Minister of Human Settlements , Water and Sanitation; and acts as the Accounting Authority 
in terms of the PFMA.

The Council was dissolved on 26 July 2019 by the Minister of Human Settlements, Water 
and Sanitation. The Interim SHRA Council was appointed by the Minister with effect from 
Monday, 28th October 2019.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Corporate Services Manager serve as executive 
members of the Council.

Council and Committee attendance is indicated in the Annual Financial Statements.

8  COmPOSITION OF THE COuNCIl

 y Council shall assume ultimate 
accountability and responsibility 
for the performance and affairs 
of the SHRA and shall in so doing 
effectively represent and promote 
the legitimate interests of the 
organisation and its Shareholder; 

 y Council shall, at all times, retain 
full and effective control over 
the organisation, give strategic 
direction, and monitor the 
performance of the business and 
affairs of the organisation; 

 y Council has a responsibility to 
the broader stakeholders which 
include, inter alia, the present 
and potential beneficiaries of the 
SHRA’s services, clients, suppliers, 
lenders, employees and the wider 
community to achieve continuing 
prosperity for the organisation’s 
mandate; 

 y Council members carry full 
fiduciary responsibility and owe a 
duty of care and skill to the SHRA; 

 y Council shall exercise leadership, 
integrity and judgement in 
directing the organisation’s affairs 
to achieve continuing prosperity 
within the context of transparency 
and accountability; 

 y Council shall oversee, approve, 
monitor and review the 
organisation’s strategy and 
business plans, major plans of 
action, policies, appropriate 
systems and annual budgets; 

 y Council shall establish 
performance objectives to enable 
it to measure management’s 
performance and the progress of 
the organisation in attaining set 
goals, objectives and targets; and 

 y Council shall ensure that 
information technology 
governance and systems used in 
the organisation are appropriate 
for it to run the business properly 
and competitively through the 
efficient use of its resources. 
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The Council is required by the PFMA, to maintain adequate accounting records and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the audited annual financial statements and 
related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the members 
to ensure that the audited annual financial statements fairly present in all material respects 
the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the period then ended.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the audited 
annual financial statements and are given unrestricted access to all financial records and 
related data.

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, 
guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The audited annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies 
consistently applied and supported by reasonable, prudent judgements and estimates.

The Council has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with section 51 the PFMA. 
The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of 
internal financial control established by the entity and place considerable importance 
on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members to meet these 
responsibilities, the Council sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk 
of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of 
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and 
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are 
monitored throughout the SHRA and all employees are required to maintain the highest 
ethical standards in ensuring the SHRA’s business is conducted in a manner that in all 
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the SHRA 
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the 
entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the SHRA endeavours to minimise 
it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are 
applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

REPORT OF THE COuNCIl RESPONSIBIlITIES AND APPROvAl

The Council is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by 
management that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the 
financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the audited annual financial 
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, 
and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Council has reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2021 and, in 
light of this review and the current financial position, is satisfied that the SHRA has access 
to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the National National Department of Human Settlements, 
Water and Sanitation for funding of operations. The audited annual financial statements are 
prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the National Department 
of Human Settlements has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail 
materially the scale of the entity.

The audited annual financial statements set out on pages 76 to 133, which have been 
prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the Council on 28 September 2020 
and were signed on behalf of the Council by:

__________________________
Ms BO Dlamini
Chairperson
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

Audit committee members and attendance

The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet at least 4 
times per annum as per its approved terms of reference.

AuDIT AND RISk COmmITTEE REPORT

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal controls applied by the SHRA over financial and risk management is 
effective, efficient and transparent. In line with the PFMA, Internal Audit provides the audit 
committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate 
and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the 
identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and 
processes. From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the audited 
annual financial statements, and the management report of the external auditors, there 
were some significant deficiencies in internal control in the areas of financial statements, 
performance reporting and compliance with legislation. Except for those, we can report 
that the system of internal control over financial reporting for the year under review was 
fairly efficient and effective.

Evaluation of audited annual financial statements and annual performance report

The audit committee has:

 y reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements and annual 
performance report to be included in the annual report, with the external auditors.

Other considerations

The appointment of an interim Council has had the desired effect of stabilizing corporate 
governance at the SHRA whilst the procedures of appointing a Council under the SHRA 
are followed. We note that the auditors have found the records of Council and Council 
Committees during this period to be complete and of a high quality.

Internal audit

During the course of the year, the audit and risk committee, was satisfied that the internal 
audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the 
entity and its audits.

_____________________________
Ms. F Kobo
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
28 September 2020

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies

Ms F Kobo* (Chairperson) 3 1 2

Mr SK Ganda (Previous Chairperson)

(Until 26 July 2019)

1 1 0

Mr D Duma 2 0 0

Ms Z Hill 2 0 0

Ms R Matenche 1 0 1

Ms BN Nzo 2 0 0

Mr TM Sukazi 2 0 0

Adv M Mdludlu (Until 26 July 2019) 2 1 0

Mr MR Moroka (Resigned 14 June 2019) 1 1 0

Mr IW Kotsoane (Until 26 July 2019) 2 1 0

Mr KS Sebata (Until 26 July 2019) 2 1 0

Mr M Mxenge (Until 26 July 2019) 0 1 2

Audit committee responsibility

The audit committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from 
section 55(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1.
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INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT
to Parliament on the Social houSing regulatory authority

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Social Housing Regulatory Authority 
set out on pages 76 to 133, which comprise statement of financial position as at 31 March 
2020, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash 
flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the 
year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Social Housing Regulatory Authority as at 31 March 2020, and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African 
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Standards (SA Standards of GRAP) and the 
requirements

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.

We are independent of the public entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the 
Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of professional conduct for Registered 
Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for 
Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 
2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to 
performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities, as applicable in accordance with the IRBA Codes and in accordance 
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA 
Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) respectively.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

As disclosed in Note 28 of the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 
2019 were restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the public entity at, 
and for the year ended, 31 March 2020.

Responsibilities of Council for the financial statements

The Council, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the SA Standards of 
GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the accounting 
authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing 
the public entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
accounting authority either intends to liquidate the public entity or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE PERFORMANCE REPORT

Introduction and scope

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice 
issued in terms thereof, we have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability 
of the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report. We performed procedures to 
identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

Our procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information, which must be based on the approved performance planning documents 
of the public entity. We have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of 
the performance indicators included in the planning documents. Our procedures do 
not examine whether the actions taken by the public entity enabled service delivery. 
Our procedures also do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned 
performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included 
as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, our findings do not extend 
to these matters.

The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected programmes 
are as follows:

Programme 4: Project Development and Funding

5.1.1 Number of social housing units delivered (tenanted)

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement 
of target “4012 social housing units delivered (tenanted)” in the annual performance report, 
due to the lack of accurate and complete records. We were unable to confirm the reported 
achievement by alternative means. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether 
any adjustments were required to the reported achievement.

We did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for these programmes:

 y Programme 2: Compliance, Accreditation and Regulations
 y Programme 3: Sector Development and Transformation

Other matters

We draw attention to the matters below. Our opinions are not modified in respect of these 
matters.

Achievement of planned targets

Refer to the annual performance report on pages 138 to 161 for information on the 
achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under/over 
achievement of a number of targets. This information should be considered in the context 
of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information in paragraph 16 of this report.

Achievement of material misstatements

We identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for 
auditing. These material misstatements were on the reported performance information 
Programme 2: Compliance, Accreditation and Regulation.  As management subsequently 
corrected the misstatements, we did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and 
reliability of the reported performance information.

Programmes pages in the annual Pages in the annual
performance report

Programme 2: Compliance, Accreditation and Regulation 146 – 151

Programme 3: Sector Development and Transformation 152 – 155

Programme 4: Project Development and Funding 156 – 161

We evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in 
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting 
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 30 
March 2020:

We performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information 
was properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved 
performance planning documents. We performed further procedures to determine 
whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed 
the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, 
accurate and complete.

INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT
to Parliament on the Social houSing regulatory authority
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

Introduction and scope

In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, we have a 
responsibility to report material findings on the public entity’ compliance with specific 
matters in key legislation. We performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance.

The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows:

Expenditure management

Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting 
to R225m disclosed in Note 20 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 
51(1) (b) (ii) of the PFMA. The majority of the irregular expenditure incurred was caused 
by non-compliance with laws and regulations governing the project accreditation, grant 
disbursements and programme costs.

Annual financial statements, performance and annual report

The financial statements and annual performance report submitted for auditing were not 
prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework as required by 
section 55(1)(b) of the PFMA. There were material misstatements in the submitted financial 
statements regarding accuracy and completeness of receivables, other income, provisions, 
commitments and contingent assets that were identified by the external auditors. The 
entity subsequently corrected the financial statements, resulting in an unqualified audit 
opinion being issued.

Appointment of Council

The appointment of the Council was not in accordance with the requirements of Section 9 
of the Social Housing Act, 2008 (Act No.16 of 2008).

OTHER INFORMATION

The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not 
include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes 

presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in this 
auditor’s report.

 Our opinion on the financial statements and our findings on the reported performance 
information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and we do 
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or 
our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When we 
do receive and read this information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and 
request that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, 
we may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. 
However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, reported 
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, our 
objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are 
limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the 
annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in 
this report.

Leadership

Leadership did not ensure compliance monitoring to prevent irregular expenditure and 
material amendments to the financial statements and the annual performance report.

Leadership did not adequately exercise appropriate oversight over financial and 
performance reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. This has led to material 
misstatements identified in the financial and performance reports.

INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT
to Parliament on the Social houSing regulatory authority
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Financial and performance management

Management did not ensure that there were adequate systems designed to collect, collate, 
verify and store the information that supports reported performance.

OTHER REPORTS

We draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or 
could have, an impact on the matters reported in the public entity’s financial statements, 
reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other 
related matters. These reports did not form part of our opinion on the financial statements 
or our findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

Investigations

During the year, the public entity instituted a forensic audit into suspicions of corrupt 
relationships and collusion between its employee and external parties. The forensic 
investigation was in progress at the date of the auditor’s report.

AUDITOR TENURE

We report that Nexia SAB&T has been the auditors of the Social Housing Regulatory 
Authority for 3 years.

_____________________________
Nexia SAB&T
Philemon Mawire
Director
Registered Auditor

30 September 2020

119 Witch-Hazel Avenue, Highveld Techno-park, Centurion

ANNEXURE – AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout our audit of the financial statements, and 
the procedures performed on reported performance information for selected programmes 
and on the public entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

In addition to our responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this 
auditor’s report, we also:

 y identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control

 y obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the public entity’s 
internal control

 y evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Council, which 
constitutes the accounting authority

INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT
to Parliament on the Social houSing regulatory authority
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The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

1 Review of activities

Main business and operations

The Social Housing Regulatory Authority was established in terms of Section 7 of Chapter 
3 of the Social Housing Act, 2008 and is also listed as a Schedule 3A public entity in terms 
of the Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999, as amended, (PFMA). The Council as 
appointed in terms of Section 9 of the Social Housing Act acts as the accounting authority 
in terms of the PFMA.

The entity is the sole regulatory authority in social housing countrywide, and is therefore 
an autonomous statutory organisation established to ensure the sustainability and growth 
of the social housing rental sector in line with government’s objectives by investing in and 
regulating the social housing sector as well as providing guidance to the sector.

The operating results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set out in the attached audited 
annual financial statements and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2 Going concern

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting 
policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to 
finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The SHRA is currently working closely with the National Department of Human Settlements 
to effectively align its mandate and delivery in line with the targets set out in the Medium-
Term Strategic Framework 2019-2024, therefore the continued operation of the entity as a 
going concern is intact for the foreseeable future. In addition, there is no indication from 
the Department of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation to terminate the MTEF 
approved fund allocation.

COuNCIl’S REPORT

Financial statements (continued)

 y conclude on the appropriateness of the Council, which constitutes the accounting 
authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements. We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Social Housing Regulatory Authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. Our conclusions 
are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a public entity to cease 
continuing as a going concern

 y evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation

Communication with those charged with governance

1. We communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

2. We also confirm to the accounting authority that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on our independence 
and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT
to Parliament on the Social houSing regulatory authority
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COuNCIl’S REPORT

3 Subsequent events

The members are not aware of any other subsequent events after financial year-end that 
would affect the reporting period.

4 Council’s interest in contracts

All Council members are required to sign a declaration of interest register at the 
commencement of each Council and Council committee meeting. None of the Council 
members have declared any interest in contracts with the entity during
the current year.

5 Accounting policies

The audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were prepared 
in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 
the PFMA and its regulations, directives and interpretations issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board.

6 Non-current assets

There were no major changes in the nature of non-current assets of the entity during the 
year. There were no changes in the policy relating to the use of non-current assets during 
the year.

7 Council Members

The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality Changes

Non-Executive Members

Ms BO Dlamini (Chairperson) South African Appointed 28 October 2019

Ms BN Nzo (Deputy Chairperson) South African Appointed 28 October 2019

Mr D Duma South African Appointed 28 October 2019

Ms Z Hill South African Appointed 28 October 2019

Mr O Mabena South African Appointed 28 October 2019

Ms R Matenche South African Appointed 28 October 2019

Mr TM Sukazi South African Appointed 28 October 2019

Mr PWW Ximiya South African Until 26 July 2019,
Re-Appointed 28 October 2019

Mr ZT Ngcakani (Chairperson) South African Resigned 28 April 2019

Ms N Ntshongwana
(Deputy Chairperson)

South African Until 26 July 2019

Mr SK Ganda South African Appointed as Chairperson on
20 May 2019 until 26 July 2019

Mr MI Higgins South African Until 26 July 2019

Adv. M Mdludlu South African Until 26 July 2019

Mr MR Moroka South African Resigned 14 June 2019

Mr IW Kotsoane South African Until 26 July 2019

Ms KE Kwinana South African Until 26 July 2019

Mr M Mxenge South African Until 26 July 2019

Mr KS Sebata South African Until 26 July 2019

Executive Members

Mr. R Gallocher (Chief Executive Off icer) South African

Ms A Puoane (Corporate Services 
Manager)

South African
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8 Council Members and Executive Managers Remuneration

COuNCIl’S REPORT

Non-Executive Members Meeting fees Travel expenses Salary Bonus Other services Total package 2020 Total package 2019

Chairperson: Ms B Dlamini 49 820 - - - 27 211 77 031 -

Previous Chairperson: Mr ZT Ngcakani 54 440 1 421 - - - 55 861 214 403

Deputy Chairperson: Ms BN Nzo 52 461 - - - 6,363 58 824 -

Previous Deputy Chairperson: Ms N Ntshongwana 97 336 - - - 27 584 124 920 156,914

Members:

Mr D Duma 50 326 - - - 7 375 57 701 -

Ms Z Hill 51 598 722 - - 11 064 63 384 -

Mr O Mabena 45 620 315 - - 14 139 60 074 -

Ms R Matenche 34 562 1 652 - - 13 044 49 258 -

Mr TM Sukazi 50 228 - - - 4 005 54 233 -

Mr PWW Ximiya 169 789 - - - 28 211 198 000 222 884

Mr MM Chikane 15 178 - - - - 15 178 86 978

Mr SK Ganda 143 773 22 462 - - 28 215 194 450 253 382

Mr MI Higgins 98 777 - - - 3 828 102 605 198 023

Mr IW Kotsoane 141 918 - - - 16 128 158 046 246 244

Ms KE Kwinana 65 722 430 - - 4 706 70 858 129 536

Adv M Mdludlu 128 274 - - - 13 240 141 514 210 734

Ms RS Molokoane 8 236 - - - - 8 236 8 236

Mr MR Moroka 86 605 3 740 - - - 90 345 264 327

Mr M Mxenge 33 614 938 - - - 34 552 156 208

Ms ZZ Ntlangula 9 648 - - - - 9 648 9 648

Mr KS Sebata 97 595 6 680 - - 10 887 115 162 129 538

Non-members invited to meetings

Prof L Weldon - - - - - - 18 753

Ms F Kobo 25 233 7 473 - - 26 424 59 130 23 260

1 510 753 45 833 - - 242 424 1 799 010 2 329 068
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COuNCIl’S REPORT

Executive Members Meeting fees Travel expenses Salary Bonus Other services Total package 2020 Total package 2019

Chief Executive Off icer: Mr R Gallocher - - 2 722 482 340 538 - 3 063 020 2 907 322

Corporate Services Manager: Ms A Puoane - - 2 127 135 193 617 - 2 320 752 2 091 045

- - 4 849 617 534 155 - 5 383 772 4 998 367

Executive Managers

Compliance  Accreditation and Regulations
Executive: Mr K Boqwana

- - 916 723 - - 916 723 1 669 121

Compliance  Accreditation and Regulations
Executive: Ms MM Nkopane

- - 333 432 - - 333 432 -

Acting Compliance  Accreditation and Regulations
Executive: Mr D Koekemoer

- - 94 698 - - - -

Sector Development & Transformation Executive:
Mr D Koekemoer

- - 1 458 737 135 643 - 1 594 380 1 579 782

Project Development and Funding Executive:
Mr L Letsoalo

- - 1 664 065 152 267 - 1 816 332 1 644 999

- - 4 467 655 287 910 - 4 660 867 4 893 902

1 510 753 45 833 9 317 272 822 065 242 424 11 938 347 12 221 337

Mr D Koekemoer was appointed as Acting Compliance, Accreditation and Regulations 
Executive from February 2019 to December 2019. The Compliance, Accreditation and the
Regulations Executive resigned on 26 July 2019 during suspension.

8 Council Members and Executive Managers Remuneration (continued)
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9 Corporate governance

General

The Council is committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all 
its activities. As part of this commitment, the Council supports the highest standards of 
corporate governance and the ongoing development of best practice.

Council members

The Council:
 y Retains full control over the entity, its plans and strategy;
 y Acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal policies, 

external laws and regulations, effective risk management and performance 
measurement, transparency and effective communication both internally and 
externally by the entity;

 y Is of a unitary structure comprising:
 ◦ non-executive members, all of whom are independent directors as defined in the 

Code; and
 ◦ executive members.

 y Has established a Council continuity programme.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

The Chairperson of the Council is a non-executive and independent member.
The roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson of the Council and Chief Executive Officer 
are separate.

Remuneration

The upper limits of the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and the Corporate 
Services Manager, who are the only two executive members of the entity, are determined 
by the Council.

The Non-Executive Council members are remunerated as determined by the Minister in 
line with National Treasury tariffs.

COuNCIl’S REPORT

Executive Committee meetings

The Executive Committee is scheduled to meet fortnightly during the financial year.
Non-executive Council members have access to all members of management of the entity.

Audit and Risk Committee

The committee met more than four times during the financial year to review matters 
necessary to fulfil its role.

Project Development & Funding Committee

The Committee oversees the Social Housing Investment Plan, ensuring adherence and 
compliance to the Capital Investment Plan and legislated investment criteria.

Compliance, Accreditation and Regulations Committee

The Committee has strategic oversight of the Social Housing Regulatory Plan and ensuring 
compliance with that plan. Furthermore, ensuring that there is compliance monitoring of 
all the reporting entities.

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

The Committee has an oversight responsibility to inform and ensure that management is 
provided with guidance on the adequacy and efficiency of the human resources policies, 
procedures and practices applied by the SHRA.

Social & Ethics Committee

The Committee oversees the SHRA’s activities related to sustainable social and economic 
development, which include the promotion of equality and ethics management.
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COuNCIl’S REPORT

Procurement framework

The entity complies with the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 16A.

The entity operates within the Preferential Procurement Regulations of the Preferential 
Procurement Policy Framework of Act 5 of 2000. It follows the 80/20 principle of all 
procurement exceeding R30 000 and falling below R50 000 000 and 90/10 principle for all 
procurement exceeding R50 000 000.

10 Council

Ordinary Council Meetings

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Ms BO Dlamini (Chairperson) 2 2 0 -

Ms BN Nzo (Deputy Chairperson) 2 2 0 -

Mr D Duma 2 2 0 -

Ms Z Hill 2 1 1 -

Mr O Mabena 2 2 0 -

Ms R Matenche 2 1 1 -

Mr TM Sukazi 2 2 - -

Mr PWW Ximiya 4 3 1 -

Mr ZT Ngcakani (Previous Chairperson) - - - -

Mr MI Higgins 2 2 0 -

Mr IW Kotsoane 2 1 1 1

Adv M Mdludlu 2 2 - 1

Ms KE Kwinana 2 2 - -

Mr SK Ganda 2 2 - 1

Mr MR Moroka 1 1 - 1

Mr M Mxenge 2 1 1 -

Ms F Kobo 1 1 - -

Ms N Ntshongwana 2 2 - -

Mr KS Sebata 2 2 - -

Special Council Meetings

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Ms BO Dlamini (Chairperson) 3 3 - -

Ms BN Nzo (Deputy Chairperson) 3 2 1 -

Mr D Duma 3 3 - -

Ms Z Hill 3 3 - -

Mr O Mabena 3 3 - -

Ms R Matenche 3 3 - -

Mr TM Sukazi 3 3 - -

Mr PWW Ximiya 9 8 1 -

Mr ZT Ngcakani (Previous Chairperson) 2 2 - -

Mr MI Higgins 5 3 2 -

Mr IW Kotsoane 5 5 - 1

Adv M Mdludlu 5 4 - 1

Ms KE Kwinana 5 4 - -

Mr SK Ganda 5 5 - 1

Mr MR Moroka 3 3 - 1

Mr M Mxenge 5 2 3 -

Ms N Ntshongwana 5 5 - -

Mr KS Sebata 5 5 - -
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11 HRR Committee

Ordinary HRRC Meetings

COuNCIl’S REPORT

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Mr PWW Ximiya (Chairperson) 4 4 - -

Ms BO Dlamini 2 1 1 -

Mr D Duma 2 2 - -

Mr O Mabena 2 2 - -

Ms BN Nzo 2 2 - -

Ms KE Kwinana 2 2 - -

Mr MI Higgins 2 2 - -

Mr SK Ganda 2 2 - -

Mr ZT Ngcakani 1 1 - -

Adv M Mdludlu 2 2 - -

Ms N Ntshongwana 2 2 - -

Mr KS Sebata 2 2 - -

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Mr PWW Ximiya (Chairperson) 1 1 - -

Ms BO Dlamini - - - -

Mr D Duma - - - -

Mr O Mabena - - - -

Ms BN Nzo - - - -

Ms KE Kwinana 1 - 1 -

Mr MI Higgins 1 1 - -

Mr SK Ganda 1 - 1 -

Mr ZT Ngcakani - - - -

Adv M Mdludlu 1 1 - -

Ms N Ntshongwana 1 - 1 -

Mr KS Sebata 1 1 - -

Special HRRC Meetings

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Mr PWW Ximiya (Chairperson) 1 1 - -

Ms BO Dlamini - - - -

Mr D Duma - - - -

Mr O Mabena - - - -

Ms BN Nzo - - - -

Ms KE Kwinana 1 - 1 -

Mr MI Higgins 1 1 - -

Mr SK Ganda 1 - 1 -

Mr ZT Ngcakani - - - -

Adv M Mdludlu 1 1 - -

Ms N Ntshongwana 1 - 1 -

Mr KS Sebata 1 1 - -

12 Compliance, Accreditation and Regulations Committee

Ordinary CAR Committee Meetings

During the year no Special CAR Committee Meetings were held.
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Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Ms Z Hill (Chairperson) 2 2 - -

Mr D Duma 2 2 - -

Ms BN Nzo 2 2 - -

Mr PWW Ximiya 4 3 1 -

Mr IW Kotsoane (Previous Chairperson) 2 2 - -

Ms KE Kwinana 2 1 1 -

Mr MR Moroka 2 2 - -

Mr SK Ganda 2 2 - -

Ms N Ntshongwana 2 2 - -

13 Project, Development and Funding Committee

Ordinary PD&F Committee Meetings

COuNCIl’S REPORT

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Ms Z Hill (Chairperson) 1 1 - -

Mr D Duma 1 1 - -

Ms BN Nzo 1 1 - -

Mr PWW Ximiya 1 1 - -

Mr IW Kotsoane (Previous Chairperson) - - - -

Ms KE Kwinana - - - -

Mr MR Moroka - - - -

Mr SK Ganda - - - -

Ms N Ntshongwana - - - -

Special PD&F Committee Meetings

Number of
Attended
Ordinary
Meetings

Number of
Attended

Special
Meetings

Apologies Number of
Attended

Workshops

Ms R Matenche (Chairperson) 2 1 1 -

Ms Z Hill 2 2 - -

Ms BO Dlamini 1 1 - -

Mr O Mabena 2 2 - -

Mr TM Sukazi 2 2 - -

Mr PWW Ximiya 3 3 - -

Mr MR Moroka (Previous Chairperson) 1 1 - -

Mr MI Higgins 2 1 1 -

Mr IW Kotsoane 2 2 - -

Ms KE Kwinana 2 1 1 -

Adv M Mdludlu 2 2 - -

Mr M Mxenge 2 - 2 -

Ms N Ntshongwana 2 2 - -

14 Social and Ethics Committee

Ordinary SEC Meetings

15 Auditors

Nexia SAB&T continued in office as external auditors for the current financial year.

16 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is amounting to R225 663 337 including additional current year’s 
disclosure of R198 938 558 reported in detail in note 20 of the Annual Financial Statements.

17. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

There are no fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the current financial year.
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STATEmENT OF FINANCIAl POSITION aS at 31 march 2020

Note(s)

31 March 2020

R

31 March 2019
Restated*

R

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 3 62 690 719 8 102 880

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 - 4 020

Cash and cash equivalents 5 5 658 476 111 1 115 272 694

721 166 830 1 123 379 594

Non-Current Assets

Property  plant and equipment 6 7 467 849 8 184 722

Intangible assets 7 3 275 082 1 133 564 827

10 742 931 10 185 233

Total Assets 731 909 761 1 133 564 827

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Operating lease liability 8 870 817 386 170

Payables from exchange transactions 9 35 158 928 43 826 024

Recalled Grant Funds 10 33 411 984 35 246 129

Provisions 11 86 225 159 64 474 795

155 666 888 143 933 118

Total Liabilities 155 666 888 143 933 118

Net Assets 576 242 873 989 631 709

Accumulated surplus 576 242 873 989 631 709

STATEmENT OF FINANCIAl PERFORmANCE aS at 31 march 2020

Note(s)

31 March 2020

R

31 March 2019
Restated*

R

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 12 810 726 000 825 752 000

Other income 13 54 948 156 11 197 200

Operating expenses (83 481 664) (80 617 728)

Programme costs 14 (1 216 473 174) (784 936 595)

Operating deficit 15 (434 280 682) (28 605 123)

Interest income 16 20 891 846 51 144 378

(Deficit) surplus for the year (413 388 836) 22 539 255
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Accumulated
surplus

R

Total net
assets

R

Opening balance as previously stated 966 726 507 966 726 507

Prior year adjustments (Refer to note 27) 365 947 365 947

Balance at 01 April 2018 as restated* 967 092 454 967 092 454

Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year as restated

22 539 255 22 539 255

Total changes 22 539 255 22 539 255

Balance at 01 April 2019 as restated* 989 631 709 989 631 709

Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

(413 388 836) (413 388 836)

Total changes (413 388 836) (413 388 836)

Balance at 31 March 2020 576 242 873 576 242 873

STATEmENT OF CHANgES IN NET ASSETS aS at 31 march 2020 CASH FlOW STATEmENT aS at 31 march 2020

Note(s)

31 March 2020

R

31 March 2019
Restated*

R

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Government Grants 810 726 000 825 752 000

Interest income 47 604 098 56 995 284

858 330 098 882 747 284

Payments

Employee costs (41 839 474) (35 288 097)

Recalled Grant Funds (SHIP Projects) - (2 490 421)

Programme costs (1 224 687 006) (764 196 607)

Other payments 17 (46 323 000) (43 474 487)

(1 312 849 480) (845 449 612)

Net cash flows from operating activities 18 (454 519 382) 37 297 672

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property  plant and equipment 6 (928 467) (8 174 632)

Proceeds from sale of property  plant and equipment - 241 511

Purchase of other intangible assets 7 (1 348 734) (1 945 863)

Net cash flows from investing activities (2 277 201) (9 878 984)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (456 796 583) 27 418 688

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1 115 272 694 1 087 854 006

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 658 476 111 1 115 272 694
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STATEmENT OF COmPARISON OF BuDgET AND ACTuAl AmOuNTS 
aS at 31 march 2020

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved
budget

R

Utilisation of
cash surplus

retention

R

Total 
funding
available

R

Actual 
amounts

on 
comparable

basis
R

Difference
between 

final
budget and

actual
R

Government Grants 810 726 000 536 152 773 1 346 878 773 810 726 000 536 152 773

Interest received - 10 000 000 10 000 000 20 891 846 (10 891 846)

Recoveries - - - 54 899 732 (54 899 732)

Other income - - - 48 424 (48 424)

Total Revenue 810 726 000 546 152 773 1 356 878 773 886 566 002 470 312 771

Expenditure 
Compensation of 
employees

- 39 310 000 - 39 310 000 39 894 394 (584 394)

Council remuneration - 1 650 000 - 1 650 000 1 799 010 (149 010)

Depreciation and 
amortisation

3 070 000 - 3 070 000 1 637 185 1 432 815

Operating expenses 23 292 000 10 000 000 33 292 000 40 151 075 (6 859 075)

Programme costs - 743 404 000 536 152 773 1 279 556 773 1 216 473 174 63 083 599

Total expenditure 810 726 000 546 152 773 1 356 878 773 1 299 954 838 56 923 935

Net deficit (413 388 836) 413 388 836

Significant operating expenses

Advertising 419 540 - 419 540 2 283 456 (1 863 916)

Audit fees 1 620 000 - 1 620 000 965 267 654 733

Lease payments 3 208 000 - 3 208 000 4 202 422 (994 422)

Legal fees 1 3 286 000 6 500 000 9 786 000 7 737 806 2 048 194

Preservation costs 2 - - - 372 600 (372 600)

Professional fees 3 6 197 000 3 500 000 9 697 000 12 414 180 (2 717 180)

Travel and 
subsistence

3 716 000 - 3 716 000 3 899 140 (183 140)

Retention of Surpluses

National Treasury has approved the retention of the surpluses for the 2020 financial year. 
The overspend as per above did not exceed the surpluses retained. The SHRA implements 
an approved annual Consolidated Capital Grant quarterly cash projections, allocating the
current year’s budget allocation against active projects approved over the two recent years. 
All other older projects are then funded from the rolled over funds. Subsequent to the full 
implementation of an organisational development processes in the latter part of the 2018
financial year, the SHRA has since stabilized and almost reached a maturity level. Therefore 
over these years, the expenditure trends presented an upward trajectory without a reviewed 
OPEX budget baseline. During the current financial year, the SHRA utilised interest
earned on OPEX to fund the shortfall.

Comments:

1. Legal fees
The legal fees were driven by the Labour Court matter and other compliance and 
regulations matters.

2. Preservation costs
Preservation costs relate to security services being rendered for the protection of 
property identified for social housing purposes which are currently the subject of 
ongoing litigation proceedings. These costs were not budgeted for previously in view of 
the nature of the proceedings.

3. Professional fees
This Consultants fees remains being predominantly driven by tenancy audits, building 
conditions assessments, projects and institutions assessors. The underspending at the 
end of the year was as a result of the unforseen COVID-19 lockdown.
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ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

1 Presentation of Audited Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including interpretations, guidelines 
and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board and in accordance with Section 
91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis 
of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention unless specified 
otherwise. They are presented in South African Rands. The financial statements have been 
rounded to the nearest Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied 
with the prior year, are disclosed below.

1.1 Going concern assumption

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation 
that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the audited annual financial statements, management is required to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the audited annual 
financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the 
future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the audited annual 
financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined the best estimate of the amount 
required to settle the present obligation. Additional disclosure of these estimates of 
provisions are included in note 11 - Provisions.

Useful lives and residual values of property and equipment and intangible assets

The SHRA’s management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of 
property and equipment and intangible assets. These assessments are made on an annual 
basis and use historical evidence and current economic factors to estimate the values.

Administrative IT equipment, office furniture and equipment, exhibits and motor vehicles 
are not componentised. These assets do not have significant parts that are considered to 
have an estimated useful life different to the estimated useful life of the asset as a whole.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure 
assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to 
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one 
period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

 y it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with 
the item will flow to the entity; and

 y the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Any subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment is capitalised when the 
costs can be estimated reliably and the expenditure increases the economic benefits or 
service potential of the asset – all other expenditure is expensed.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs 
attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date 
of acquisition.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses.
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Items of Property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date it is available for use, 
on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Furniture and f ixtures Straight line 6 - 15 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 3 - 6 years

Off ice equipment Straight line 3 - 6 years

IT equipment Straight line 3 - 6 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line Lower of useful life and term of lease

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method are reviewed when there 
is an indication that the entities expectation thereoff have changed since the previous 
reporting period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted 
for as a change in accounting estimate. Indicators of reassessment used by management 
includes assets that are approaching the end of their useful life, planned replacement or 
refurbishment of assets, technology changes or change in use of an asset.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend 
the previous estimate unless expectations differ from the previous estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is 
included in the carrying amount of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or 
when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use 
of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising 
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES
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ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

1.4 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:

 y it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that 
are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and

 y the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost shall be deemed to 
be its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment 
losses.

For intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their expected 
useful lives. The estimated residual value, the expected useful life and amortisation method 
for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. If the expectations differ from 
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of the intangible asset on an annual basis does not require 
the entity to amend the previous estimate unless expectations differ from the previous 
estimate.

Amortisation commences on the date the asset is brought into use.

The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is 
included in the carrying amount of another asset.

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no 
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset is included in surplus 
or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition 
of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, 
if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis over 
their expected useful lives, to their estimated residual values as follows:

Item Useful life

Computer software other 2 years

Annual licence renewals and incidental costs are not capitalised as part of the cost of 
intangible assets and are recognised immediately in surplus or deficit when the cost is 
incurred.

1.5 Financial instruments

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or 
similar means, and require settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of 
financial position.

The cost method is the method used to account for statutory receivables that requires 
such receivables to be measured at their transaction amount, plus any accrued interest or 
other charges (where applicable) and, less any accumulated impairment losses and any 
amounts derecognised.

Nominal interest rate is the interest rate and/or basis specified in legislation, supporting 
regulations or similar means. The transaction amount (for purposes of this Standard) for 
a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated, levied or charged in 
accordance with, legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means.
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1.6 Taxation

No provision has been made for taxation. The entity is exempt from taxation in terms of 
section 10 (1) cA of the Income Tax Act.

1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of 
generating a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with 
that adopted by a profit orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

As the entity is not profit orientated and it holds its assets to facilitate the pursuance of its 
mandate, its assets are non-cash generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over 
and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or 
service potential through depreciation (amortisation). Recoverable amount of an asset or a 
cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and of its value in
use.

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

Identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it 
is impaired.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-
generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the 
recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a cash-
generating intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible 
asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount 
with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every 
year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that 
intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting period.

Value in use

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential.

Future service potential is determined using depreciated replacement costs and/or 
restoration costs methods.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an 
impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for 
the cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating 
asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life.



90 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 91 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

Reversal of impairment loss

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an 
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer 
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the
recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset 
is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The 
increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or 
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in 
surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge 
for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating 
asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life.

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial 
return. An asset generates a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent 
with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over 
and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or 
service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial 
position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses thereon.

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the 
objective of generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing 
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, 
excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an 
asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by 
the entity.

Criteria developed by the audited annual financial statements to distinguish non-cash-
generating assets from cashgenerating assets are as follow: [Specify criteria]
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1.9 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the SHRA in exchange for service 
rendered by its employees.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment 
benefits and termination benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future 
employment.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) 
that are due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

 y salaries and social security contributions;
 y short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) 

where the compensation for the absences is due to be settled within twelve 
months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the 
related employee service;

 y bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve 
months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the 
related service; and

 y non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods 
or services such as housing, cars and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity 
recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be 
paid in exchange for that service:

 y as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the 
amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the 
entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the 
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash 
refund; and

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

 y as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the 
benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees 
render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected cost of accumulating 
compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result 
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related 
payments when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such 
payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 
A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the 
payments.

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays 
fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all 
employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity 
recognise the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that 
service:

 y as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. 
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before 
the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) 
to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future 
payments or a cash refund; and

 y as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the 
contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve 
months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related 
service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value of money. 
The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of 
money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.
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1.10 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

 y the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 y it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or 

service potential will be required to settle the obligation; and
 y a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required 
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present 
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be 
reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The 
reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement
does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to 
reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit).

If an entity identifies a contract as onerous, the loss is recognised immediately in surplus or 
loss and the counter present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised 
and measured as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised, but disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements.
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting 
period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating 
to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has 
liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form 
of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, 
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
trade discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when:

 y It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
transaction will flow to the entity, and

 y The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
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1.11 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and 
receivable by the entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases 
relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic 
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to 
the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in 
pursuit of its objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that 
benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or 
has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the 
form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-
exchange transaction, the entity either receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without 
directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which 
a transferred asset may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefit or service 
potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, 
imposed upon the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange 
transactions, other than taxes.

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised 
as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same 
inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of 
resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying 
amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that 
reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in 
net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also 
recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at 
the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is 
required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required 
to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, 
if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the 
taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability 
is recognised as revenue.
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1.12 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is defined in section 1 of the PFMA as expenditure other than 
unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a 
requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

a. this Act; or
b.  the Treasury Regulations;
c. a National Treasury Instruction, issued in terms of section 76 of the PFMA;
d. a Provincial Treasury Instruction issued in terms of section 18(2)(a) of the PFMA; or
e. any other applicable legislation.

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. 
The amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred, unless it 
is impractical to determine, in which case reasons therefore must be provided in the notes.

Irregular expenditure must be removed from the balance of the irregular expenditure 
notes when it is either

a. condoned by the relevant authority if no official was found to be liable in law;
b. recovered from an official liable in law;
c. written-off if it’s irrecoverable from an official liable in law; or
d. written-off if it’s not condoned and not recoverable.

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial period 
and which was condoned before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial 
statements is recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. No further action 
is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year 
and for which condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular 
expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note 
to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only 
condoned in the following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial 
statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year 
and which was not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be 
recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular 
expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person 
is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the 
person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority 
may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly.

If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the 
expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure 
item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly 
in the irregular expenditure register.
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1.13 Segment information

A segment is an activity of an entity:

 y that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic 
benefits or service potential relating to transactions between activities of the 
same entity);

 y whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to that activity and in assessing its performance; and

 y for which separate financial information is available.

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment 
report. They are the segments identified above or alternatively an aggregation of two or 
more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.

ACCOuNTINg POlICIES

1.14 Budget information

Entity is subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations 
(or equivalent), which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or 
similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether 
resources were obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by programmes linked 
to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020.
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its 
control.

The audited annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of 
accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period 
have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

Comparative information is not required.

1.15 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or 
indirectly owned by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional 
independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the 
national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Only transactions with Government related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary 
course of business are disclosed.
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2 New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been 
published and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 
01 April 2020 or later periods:

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Years 
beginning on or after

Expected impact:

 y GRAP 104 (amended): Financial 
Instruments To be determined

Unlikely there will be a 
material impact

 y Guideline: Guideline on the Application of 
Materiality to Financial Statements To be determined

Unlikely there will be a
material impact

 y IGRAP 20: Accounting for Adjustments to 
Revenue 01 April 2020

Unlikely there will be a
material impact

 y GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of 
Financial Statements 01 April 2020

Unlikely there will be a
material impact

 y Directive 7 (revised): The Application of 
Deemed Cost 01 April 2020

Unlikely there will be a
material impact

3 Receivables from exchange transactions

2020
R

2019
R

Consolidated Capital Grant recoveries 61 390 108 7 033 179

Prepayments 230 910 -

Deposits 1 069 701 1 069 701

62 690 719 8 102 880

Trade and other receivables pledged as security

No receivables were pledged as security.

Deposits

Deposits relate to rental deposit on the premises occupied by the entity and Telkom deposit.

2020
R

2019
R

Social Housing Institutions

Salamax 434 NPC - Helderwyk Ext 6 - 
SHIP7A 11 197 200 11 197 200

Less: Impairment Salamax 434 NPC - 
Helderwyk Ext 6 - SHIP7A (4 164 021) (4 164 021)

Camel Rock - Connemara 542 803 -

Less: Impairment Camel Rock - 
Connemara (542 803) -

Kenso (Pty) Ltd - Hillside View - SHIP8B 54 356 929 -

61 390 108 7 033 179

Credit quality of trade and other receivables

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired will 
be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information 
about counterparty default rates.

Consolidated Capital Grant recoveries

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to 
be impaired. At 31 March 2020, no balances were past due but not impaired.

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2020, trade and other receivables of R4 706 824 (2019: Rnil) were impaired 
and provided for.

4 Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Staff debtors 4 020
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2020
R

2019
R

Cash on hand 743 146

Current accounts 93 357 012 583 202 623

Call accounts 565 086 213 532 037 719

Debit cards 32 143 32 206

658 476 111 1 115 272 694

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that 
are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if 
available) or historical information about counterparty default rates:

Credit rating

Ba1 - First National Bank (Moody’s Rating) 658 476 111 1 115 272 694

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

6 Property, plant and equipment

2020 2019

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Furniture and 
f ixtures 2 672 328 (568 591) 2 103 737 2 666 332 (341 971) 2 324 361

Motor vehicles 357 719 (250 403) 107 316 357 719 (250 403) 107 316

Off ice equipment 641 233 (575 717) 65 516 641 233 (571 515) 69 718

IT equipment 4 189 780 (2 401 545) 1 788 235 3 367 517 (2 081 720) 1 285 797

Leasehold 
improvements 4 972 424 (1 569 379) 3 403 045 4 972 424 (574 894) 4 397 530

Total 12 833 484 (5 365 635) 7 467 849 12 005 225 (3 820 503) 8 184 722
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Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Furniture and 
f ixtures

2 324 361 5 996 - (226 620) 2 103 737

Motor vehicles 107 316 - - - 107 316

Off ice equipment 69 718 - - (4 202) 65 516

IT equipment 1 285 797 922 471 (82 319) (337 714) 1 788 235

Leasehold 
improvements

4 397 530 - - (994 485) 3 403 045

8 184 722 928 467 (82 319) (1 563 021) 7 467 849

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

2020

R

2019

R

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Furniture and 
f ixtures

679 507 2 666 332 (811 234) (210 244) 2 324 361

Motor vehicles 107 316 - - - 107 316

Off ice equipment 78 391 - - (8 673) 69 718

IT equipment 952 540 535 876 - (202 619) 1 285 797

Leasehold 
improvements

- 4 972 424 - (574 894) 4 397 530

1 817 754 8 174 632 (811 234) (996 430) 8 184 722

7 Intangible assets

2020 2019

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Computer software - 
Other 4 616 108 (1 341 026) 3 275 082 3 267 374 (1 266 863) 2 000 511

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software - Other 2 000 511 1 348 734 (74 163) 3 275 082

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software - Other 249 522 1 945 863 (194 874) 2 000 511

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019

8 Operating lease liability

Current liabilities - Premises 870 817 386 170

The operating lease liability relate to the rental of premises of the entity which have been 
negotiated for a period of 5 years with a yearly increase of 8.5%.
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9 Payables from exchange transactions

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

2020
R

2019
R

Trade payables 466 315 3 232 651

Accrued expenses 32 897 117 38 617 474

Accrued leave pay 1 793 468 1 972 859

Travel card 2 028 3 040

35 158 928 43 826 024

Payables are settled on invoice or 30 day terms.

Accrued expenses comprise of running costs and program costs that had been incurred at 
year end but not yet paid.

Province/Institution Project Programme* 2020
R

2019
R

Gauteng Province

Johannesburg Social 
Housing Company

City Deep 
Phase 1 SHIP 3B 30 509 516 30 509 516

30 509 516 30 509 516

Western Cape Province

Western Cape Province Institutional 
Investment

Institution
Investment 245 351 245 351

Domus Social Housing 
- liquidated

E-Junction 
Phase 1 SHIP 3B 2 657 117 4 491 262

2 902 468 4 736 613

33 411 984 35 246 129

10 Recalled Grant Funds

Recalled Grant Funds (SHIP* Projects) relate to amounts that were disbursed in prior years to 
qualifying grant recipients using a Social Housing Institution Imprest account in the control 
and name of the Social Housing Institution. In an effort to mitigate the risks associated with 
lack of control and potential irregular expenditure, Social Housing Regulatory Authority
abandoned the use of the Social Housing Institution Imprest account. Unutilized funds 
that had been granted using the Imprest account system were requested to be repatriated 
back to the Social Housing Regulatory Authority to be disbursed later according to actual 
project expenditure.

*SHIP - Social Housing Investment Programme
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11 Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2020

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

2020
R

2019
R

Opening
balance

Additions Utilised during
the year

Total

Provision for bonuses 3 039 461 3 171 184 (3 039 461) 3 171 184

Interest earned capitalisation 61 435 334 32 570 321 (10 951 680) 83 053 975

64 474 795 35 741 505 (13 991 141) 86 225 159

Opening
balance - 
Restated

Additions Utilised during
the year

Total

Provision for bonuses 1 567 211 3 039 461 (1 567 211) 3 039 461

Interest earned capitalisation 58 074 849 5 850 905 (2 490 420) 61 435 334

59 642 060 8 890 366 (4 057 631) 64 474 795

Reconciliation of provisions - 2019

The interest earned capitalisation constitutes of interest earned on various project bank 
sub-accounts held by the SHRA over the years. In terms of the capital grant contracts and 
policies, the SHRA may at its discretion, approve use of interest on capital grants for project 
enhancements. Any untilised interest will be recognised as revenue in future, but the basic
principle of this provision is to re-invest interest back into the social housing sector to 
improve quality and sustainability.

12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

2020
R

2019
R

Consolidated Capital Grant 723 706 000 743 640 000

Operational Grant 55 201 000 51 980 000

Institutional Investment Grant 21 259 000 20 132 000

Regulations 10 560 000 10 000 000

810 726 000 825 752 000

Consolidated Capital Grant recoveries 54 899 732 11 197 200

Skills Development Levy Recoveries 48 424 -

54 948 156 11 197 200

13 Other income
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14 Programme costs

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

Province/Institution Project Programme* 2020
R

2019
R

Eastern Cape Province

Hlalanathi Social Housing 
Association NPC

Ocean View SHIP 5A 13 509 716 41 030 924

Housing Association East 
London NPC

Belgravia SHIP 7D - 8 009 699

Imizi Housing Utility NPC Fairview Link SHIP 7C - 9 156 672

Imizi Housing Utility NPC John Str SHIP 9D 42 980 784 -

Imizi Housing Utility NPC Willowdene SHIP 4B - 2 512 300

Own Haven Housing 
Association NPC

Walmer Cosmos SHIP 7A 54 675 059 136 022 432

Qhama Social Housing 
Institute NPC

Steve Biko Munford SHIP 5A - 11 365 920

111 165 559 208 097 947

Free State Province

Kenso (Pty) Ltd Hillside View SHIP 8B - 9 671 653

- 9 671 653

Limpopo Province

Polokwane Housing Annadale SHIP 9E 72 896 639 -

Gauteng Province

Arrow Creek Investments 25 
(Pty) Ltd

Mogale Junction SHIP 7D 141 703 055 50 948 299

Golden West Social Housing 
Institution NPC

Westernoria Borwa SHIP 7C 53 533 806 16 121 691

Instratin Properties (Pty) Ltd Carnival City SHIP 8B 123 899 951 49 037 865

Instratin Properties (Pty) Ltd Devland Ext 36 SHIP 5A 51 544 645 55 394 841

Instratin Properties (Pty) Ltd Little Manhattan SHIP 9E 187 067 908 -

Johannesburg Social Housing 
Company SOC

80 Plein Street SHIP 6A - 9 397 857

Johannesburg Social Housing 
Company SOC

Turffontein SHIP 9C - 123 318 872

Kertrade 24 (Pty) Ltd Madison Loft SHIP 9F 5 278 848 -

LetsCare South Africa NPC Sondela SHIP 9C 46 815 497 13 375 856

Nomda Housing NPC Germiston Ext SHIP 7D - 6 230 977

The Housing Hub (Pty) Ltd Mohlakeng SHIP 9A 152 817 797 50 167 388

Toro Property Management 
NPC

GaRankuwa SHIP 8D 59 910 438 84 671 191

Urban Scape Development 
(Pty) Ltd

301 Marshall SHIP 7D 9 216 774 -

YG Property (Pty) Ltd Kempton Village SHIP 9A 56 642 791 14 688 323

888 431 510 473 353 160
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14 Programme costs (continued)

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

Province/Institution Project Programme* 2020
R

2019
R

Mpumalanga Province

Steve Tshwete Housing 
Association NPC

Hope City SHIP 9C 22 402 995 6 928 931

North West Province

Instratin Properties (Pty) Ltd Flamwood SHIP 5A - 22 231 801

- 22 231 801

Kwa-Zulu Natal Province

First Metro Housing Company Lakehaven Phase 2 SHIP 5A 822 130 -

First Metro Housing Company Hamptons SHIP 3A 4 605 812 -

First Metro Housing Company Hilltops SHIP 3A - 4 922 414

Instratin Properties (Pty) Ltd Bridge City SHIP 9F 43 213 864 -

48 641 806 4 922 414

Free State Province

Madulammoho Housing 
Association NPC

Belhar SHIP 3B - 2 070 601

Communicare NPC Bothasig SHIP 9E 30 530 988 6 187 114

Community Housing Services 
NPC

Goodwood SHIP 8B 3 372 216 2 363 726

Community Housing Services 
NPC

Heideveld SHIP 8B - 53 100

Povicom NPC Regent Villa SHIP 8D 17 672 437 4 828 907

Urban Status Rentals NPC The Block 
(Glenhaven) SHIP 5A 7 717 260 33 443 801

59 292 901 48 947 249

Total Consolidated Capital Grants 1 202 831 410 774 153 155

Institutional Investment Grants

General Capacitation Grant 11 924 212 8 081 096

Project Feasibility Grant 990 364 882 176

Pre-Accreditation Grant - 585 137

Remedial Grant - 435 512

Staff Gear-Up Grant 727 188 799 519

Total Institutional Investment Grants 13 641 764 10 783 440

Total Grants 1 216 473 174 784 936 595
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NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

14 Programme costs (continued)

Consolidated Capital Grants

These programme costs relate to capital grants disbursed to social housing institutions in 
accordance with the relevant investment criteria.

Institutional Investment Grants

These programme costs relate to the following:

 y Gearing up staff in accreditated and conditionally accredited institutions
 y Providing financial support for the preparation of project proposals and obtaining 

approval
 y Providing financial support for the preparation and submission of proposals for 

accreditation and increasing accreditation status
 y Ad-hoc grants linked to institutional business planning and other programme 

related support grants

15 Operating deficit

Operating deficit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

2020
R

2019
R

Operating lease charges

Premises

Straight lined amount Equipment 3 925 899 3 666 609

Contractual amounts 276 523 244 203

4 202 422 3 910 812

16 Interest income

Interest revenue

Operational Grant 1 608 649 1 585 173

Call Account - Capital Grants 19 283 197 49 559 205

20 891 846 51 144 378

2020
R

2019
R

Loss on sale of property  plant and equipment 82 319 569 723

Amortisation of intangible asset 74 163 194 874

External audit fee 965 267 1 014 860

Consultant expenses 9 609 684 7 988 915

Council members remuneration 1 799 010 2 329 068

Internal audit fees - 704 981

Depreciation on property  plant and equipment 1 563 021 996 430

Employee costs 39 894 394 33 403 913

Research and development - 56 521

Programme costs 12 1 216 473 174 784 936 595

Repairs and maintenance 28 385 68 037
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17 Other payments

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

2020
R

2019
R

Movement in payables and accruals 6 449 718 584 728

Movement in provisions (131 723) (1 472 250)

Movement in receivables from exchange transactions - 217 082

Total expenses 83 481 664 80 617 728

Non Cash Items:

Depreciation  amortisation and impairments (1 637 185) (1 184 704)

Separately Disclosable Items:

Employee costs (41 839 474) (35 288 097)

46 323 000 43 474 487

2020
R

2019
R

(Deficit) surplus (413 388 836) 22 539 255

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1 637 185 1 184 704

Loss on sale of assets 82 319 569 723

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 484 647 279 212

Movements in provisions 21 750 364 6 404 947

Other non-cash items 2 6 599

Changes in working capital:

Receivables from exchange transactions (54 587 839) (7 246 241)

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 020 (4 020)

Payables from exchange transactions (8 667 099) 29 228 396

Recalled Grant Funds (1 834 145) (15 664 903)

(454 519 382) 37 297 672

18 Net cash flows from operating activities

19 Contingencies

Contingent assets

SHRA deems it necessary to disclose contingent assets in respect of the following 
transactions:

TBGI Holdings (Pty) Ltd – Soweto City – SHIP 8B

A total amount of R 26 724 812 has been paid in terms of a consolidated capital grant 
agreement which was subsequently identified as irregular expenditure in the previous 
financial year. Legal proceedings have been instituted against TBGI Holdings (Pty) Ltd of 
which the outcome of the court case is uncertain.

Toproot Property Management (Pty) Ltd – Riverlea – SHIP 4B and SHIP 9C

A total amount of R 9 755 866 has been paid in terms of a consolidated capital grant 
agreement. This amount was utilized by Toproot to pay its supplier, Valumax, who was both 
the developer and land owner to the project. Toproot instituted legal proceedings against 
Valumax to recover the amount as a result of breach of contract by Valumax which resulted 
in the collapse of the project. The recoverability of the amount by the SHRA is dependent 
on the outcome of the court case between Toproot and Valumax.
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NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

2020
R

2019
R

Opening balance 26 724 812 26 724 812

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 59 910 438 -

Add: Irregular Expenditure - relating to prior year 139 028 120 -

Less: Amounts condoned - -

Less: Amounts recoverable (not condoned) - -

Less: Amounts not recoverable (not condoned) - -

225 663 370 26 724 812

Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Description

During the current f inancial year Management has identif ied 
the following irregular expenditure incurred on previously 
approved social housing projects  as not being in compliance 
with the Social Housing Act and consequently expenditure 
incurred in the prior year is also identif ied as irregular 
expenditure. This expenditure is classif ied as programme costs 
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Disciplinary steps taken

No Disciplinary steps have been taken or criminal proceedings 
instituted against any off icial of the entity or any member of 
the Accounting Authority considering the reasons regarding 
the nature and context of the irregular expenditure incurred.

- 59 910 438

2020
R

2019
R

These projects do not meet the requirements of being located 
in a restructuring zones as defined in the Social Housing Act. A 
restructuring zone means “a geographical area which has been
(a) identif ied by the municipality  with the concurrence of the 

provisional government  for purposes of social housing; and
(b) designated by the Minister in the Gazette for approved 

projects.

Not yet condoned - not recoverable

Toro Property Management NPC – SHIP 8D GaRankuwa was 
paid cumulatively R 144 581 629 (2020: R59 910 438)
(2019: R84 671 191)

The SHRA does not have the intention to cancel this project  
but to enable the it to resume and complete of the social 
housing project upon gazetting of the restructuring zone. The
condonation of this irregular expenditure has been considered 
and approved by the Accounting Authority on the 29th July 
2020 to request the condonation by the relevant authority. The 
entity will await the f inal outcome.

Not yet condoned - recoverable

•	Kenso	(Pty)	Ltd	–	SHIP	8B	Hillside	View	was	paid	cumulatively	
R 54 356 929 (2020: R -) (2019: R 9 671 653) (2018: R 44 685 276)

Similarly  this project is also awaiting gazetting of the location 
within which the project is located. This project comprises of 
two phases  with Phase I yielding 389 practically completed 
units out of 402 social housing units ready for tenanting and 
Phase II is in planning and implementation stages.

Although not yet condoned by the relevant authority the SHRA 
has accounted for this irregular expenditure as recoverable as a 
result of unutilised consolidated capital grant disbursed to the 
project due to the protracted planning process experienced by 
the grant recipient. The process of regularisation of the project 
to obtain approval from the Executive Authority to gazette the 
location of the project as a restructuring zone is still in the early 
stages. As soon as the land challenges are resolved   the SHRA 
will disburse the consolidated capital grant as per contractual 
commitments. This will enable the entity to continue with this 
project as there is a contractual commitment in place.

59 910 438

20 Irregular expenditure 20 Irregular expenditure (continued)
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21 Commitments

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

2020
R

2019
R

Already contracted for but not provided for

 y Consolidated Capital Grant 3 258 186 471 3 335 807 233

 y Less: Accrued amounts (30 042 318) (24 830 770)

 y Provincial Institutional Grant 297 486 715 26 960 121

3 525 630 868 3 337 936 584

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members

 y Consolidated Capital Grant 205 803 315 569 289 498

Total capital commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for 3 525 630 868 3 337 936 584

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members 205 803 315 569 289 498

3 731 434 183 3 907 226 082

Authorised operational expenditure

 y DRB Consulting 7 215 -

 y 21 Century Pay Solutions - 18 810

 y Africa International Advisors 504 128 -

 y Alcari 126 CC 279 240 -

 y Alcari Consulting 79 856 -

 y AM Phakamalele 378 017 -

 y Andisa Chartered Accountants 73 680 -

 y Archway Projects CC 402 760 408 421

 y Big Bell Investments (Pty) Ltd - 291 667

 y Bigen Africa Services (Pty) Ltd 281 136 -

 y Bold Moves 63 - 391 590

 y Cleaning Africa Services - 28 731

 y Deloitte and Touche 121 037 131 801

 y Eloshiba Projects Finance (Pty) Ltd - 275 876

 y Excelle International - 735 840

 y Galix Networking (Pty) Ltd 171 007 294 735

 y Housing Matters 500 604 -

2020
R

2019
R

 y Ilse Martin Projects 259 602 -

 y Insite Settlements Network CC 2 625 168 -

 y Integral Networking - 278 869

 y LDM Facilities Management Services 456 880 -

 y Learning Strategies - 255 815

 y Lenakamo Projects (Pty) Ltd 147 087 -

 y Lets Care - 97 813

 y Letsema Consulting and Advisory (Pty)Ltd - 109 520

 y Michelle Collective - 345 583

 y Nexia SAB&T 632 960 1 708 345

 y Nestle (South Africa) (Pty) Ltd - 134 867

 y nVisionIT (Pty) Ltd 4 355 141 6 093 794

 y Outsourced Risk and Compliance Assessment - 1 814 652

 y Own Haven - 9 081

 y PDC Social Housing - 186 421

 y Ramokgadi Trading (Pty) Ltd 415 031 -

 y Rebel Group Advisory Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd - 2 738 787

 y Reflections Development Institute (Pty) Ltd - 483 360

 y Sage Computer Technologies (Pty) Ltd 644 745 -

 y The Document Warehouse - 92 510

 y The Mineral Water Man Africa (Pty) Ltd 126 092 151 104

 y Tout A Fait - 203 620

 y Tuscan Blue Trading 390 234 -

 y Vortex Training Systems CC 1 693 030 -

14 544 650 17 281 612

Total operational commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for 14 544 650 17 281 612



124 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 125 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

2020
R

2019
R

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

 y within one year 4 073 441 3 185 811

 y in second to f ifth year inclusive 11 280 528 15 353 969

15 353 969 18 539 780

22 Related parties

Relationships
Controlling entity          National Department of Human Settlements

Related party transactions

Revenue received from related parties

National Department of Human Settlements 810 726 000 825 752 000

Remuneration of management

Executive Management Remuneration 2020

Name Basic salary Bonuses and 
performance 

related 
payments

Total

Chief Executive Off icer: Mr R Gallocher 2 722 482 340 538 3 063 020

Corporate Services Manager: Ms A Puoane 2 127 135 193 617 2 091 045

4 849 617 534 155 5 154 065

Executive Management Remuneration 2019

Name Basic salary Bonuses and 
performance 

related 
payments

Total

Chief Executive Off icer: Mr R Gallocher 2 586 060 321 262 2 907 322

Corporate Services Manager: Ms A Puoane 1 958 482 132 563 2 091 045

4 544 542 453 825 4 998 367

Executive Managers 2020

Name Basic salary Bonuses and 
performance 

related 
payments

Total

Executive managers 2020

Compliance  Accreditation and Regulation 
Executive: Mr K Boqwana

916 723 - 916 723

Compliance  Accreditation and Regulations 
Executive: Ms MM Nkopane

333 432 - 333 432

Acting Compliance  Accreditation and 
Regulations Executive: Mr D Koekemoer

94 698 - 94 698

Sector Development & Transformation Executive: 
Mr D Koekemoer

1 458 737 135 683 1 594 420

Project Development and Funding Executive:
L Letsoalo

1 664 065 152 267 1 816 332

4 467 655 287 950 4 755 605

Executive Managers Remuneration 2019

Name Basic salary Bonuses and 
performance 

related 
payments

Total

Compliance  Accreditation and Regulation 
Executive: Mr K Boqwana

1 669 121 - 1 669 121

Sector Development & Transformation Executive: 
Mr D Koekemoer

1 420 577 159 205 1 579 782

Project Development and Funding Executive:
L Letsoalo

1 547 285 97 714 1 644 999

4 636 983 256 919 4 893 902

21 Commitments (continued)
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NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

23 Financial assets

Amortised cost

Receivables 62 690 719 62 690 719

Cash and cash equivalents 658 476 111 658 476 111

721 166 830 721 166 830

At amortised cost

Receivables 8 102 880 8 102 880

Cash and cash equivalents 1 115 272 694 1 115 272 694

1 123 375 574 1 123 375 574

At amortised cost Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

Total

Payables 35 158 928 35 158 928

35 158 928 35 158 928

At amortised cost Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

Total

Payables 43 826 024 43 826 024

43 826 024 43 826 024

24 Financial liabilities per category

25 Risk management

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including cash flow 
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The entity’s exposure to risk, its objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk 
arising from its financial instruments and methods used to measure the entity’s exposure 
to these risks, have not changed significantly from the prior year. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due. The entity’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that 
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
entity’s reputation. The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future 
commitments and cash flows.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual 
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash 
flows.

At 31 March 2020 Less than 1
year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 35 158 928 - - -

At 31 March 2019 Less than 1
year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 43 826 024 - - -
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NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

25 Risk management (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits and cash equivalents. There are minimal risks 
relating to receivables from exchange transactions as it mainly consists of prepayments 
and deposits. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit 
standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not 
expect any surplus (deficit) from non-performance by these counterparties.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk results from the cash flows and financial performance uncertainty arising 
from interest rate fluctuations. Financial assets and liabilities affected by interest rate 
fluctuations include bank and cash deposits.

This is a risk that fair value or future cash flows from financial instruments will fluctuate as 
a result of changes in the market interest rates. Values in the financial instruments may 
change thus resulting in both potential gains and losses.

The entity managed the market interest rate risk by keeping the cash in the operating 
bank account at a minimum in order to maximise interest earned on cash deposits.

The entity has invested any surplus cash in a call account. The interest rate on this account 
fluctuates in line with movements in current market rates.

26 Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan

2020
R

2019
R

Pension 2 818 412 2 410 275

The entity entered into a defined contribution plan with Momentum Group Limited 
whereby the entity contributes to a pension fund for the employees on a one for one ratio 
with the employees.

27 Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

The entity is organised and reports to management on the basis of four major functional 
areas: Consolidated Capital Grant, Operational Grant, Institutional Investment Grant and 
Regulations. The segments were organised around the type of service delivered and 
the target market. Management uses these same segments for determining strategic 
objectives.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating 
the segments’ performances and for making decisions about the allocation of resources. 
The disclosure of information about these segments is also considered appropriate for 
external reporting purposes.
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Segment surplus or deficit 2020

Revenue Consolidated 
Capital Grant

Operational 
Grant

Institutional 
Investment 

Grant

Regulations Total

Grants received 723 702 464 55 201 000 21 259 000 10 560 000 810 722 464

Interest income 19 283 197 1 608 649 - - 20 891 846

Consolidated Capital Grant 
recoveries

54 899 732 - - - 54 899 732

Other income - 48 424 - - 48 424

Total segment revenue 797 885 393 56 858 073 21 259 000 10 560 000 886 562 466

Entity’s revenue 886 562 466

Expenditure

Advertising - 2 140 406 - 143 050 2 283 456

Audit fees - 965 267 - - 965 267

Professional fees - 10 135 547 - 2 278 633 12 414 180

Depreciation and 
amortisation

- 1 637 185 - - 1 637 185

Employees costs - 39 894 394 - - 39 894 394

Council remuneration - 1 799 010 - - 1 799 010

Programme costs 1 202 831 410 - 13 641 764 - 1 216 473 174

Lease rentals on operating 
lease

- 4 202 422 - - 4 202 422

Legal expenses - 7 737 806 - - 7 737 806

Training and workshops - 2 990 223 737 595 50 947 3 778 765

Travel - 3 009 809 511 516 377 815 3 899 140

Other expenses - 441 165 997 454 3 427 884 4 866 503

Total segment expenditure 1 202 831 410 74 953 234 15 888 329 6 278 329 1 299 951 302

Total segmental surplus (413 388 836)

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

26 Segment information (continued)

Segment surplus or deficit 2019

Revenue Consolidated 
Capital Grant

Operational 
Grant

Institutional 
Investment 

Grant

Regulations Total

Grants received 743 640 000 51 980 000 20 132 000 10 000 000 825 752 000

Interest income 29 988 754 21 155 624 - - 51 144 378

Consolidated Capital Grant 
recoveries

11 197 200 - - - 11 197 200

Total segment revenue 784 825 954 73 135 624 20 132 000 10 000 000 888 093 578

Entity’s revenue 888 093 578

Expenditure

Advertising - 1 027 655 - - 1 027 655

Audit fees - 1 014 861 - - 1 014 861

Professional fees - 3 623 287 1 660 241 10 068 483 15 352 011

Depreciation - 1 184 704 - - 1 184 704

Employees costs - 35 814 188 - - 35 814 188

Council remuneration - 2 329 068 - - 2 329 068

Programme costs 774 153 155 - 10 783 440 - 784 936 595

Lease rentals on operating 
lease

- 3 910 812 - - 3 910 812

Legal expenses - 3 147 877 - 207 468 3 355 345

Research and 
development

- - 56 521 - 56 521

Training and workshops - 553 131 1 420 818 43 769 2 017 718

Travel - 3 259 314 283 222 378 454 3 920 990

Other expenses 4 164 021 6 259 451 126 330 84 053 10 633 855

Total segment expenditure 778 317 176 62 124 348 14 330 572 10 782 227 865 554 323

Total segmental surplus 22 539 255
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28 Prior period errors

In the prior year an amount of R 4 120 172 accrued was incorrectly expensed as programme 
costs. The amount was elating to Recalled Grant Funds from a Social Housing Institution. 
The error has been corrected retrospectively.

Certain previously approved Social Housing Institutions (“SHIs”) project grants were ring-
fenced and placed in separate interest earning bank accounts. The interest accruing in these 
bank accounts could be used to improve the quality of the relevant projects at the discretion 
and approval by SHRA for the utilisation of the funds. Once the project is complete, the 
interest earned but not utilised can be retained by SHRA. Errors were identified relating to 
interest incorrectly being accounted for as capital in previous financial years. These errors 
have been corrected retrospectively.

An amount of R1 445 000 was accounted for incorrectly in the 2018 financial year against 
programme costs which related to a Social Housing Institution which was in the process of 
liquidation. In the 2019 financial year amounts of R633 197 relating to legal and professional 
fees were also incorrectly expensed. These amounts should have been accounted for against 
the Recalled Grant Funds liability. The amounts have been corrected restrospectively.

In the prior year IT equipment to the value of R342 994 was incorrectly accounted for as an 
expense. This was correctly restrospectively.

During the prior year a contract with a Social Housing Institution was cancelled by SHRA. 
The amount receivable from the Social Housing Institution to the amount of R11 197 200 
was not accrued for in the prior year, as well as the relevant impairment to the amount of 
R4 164 021. This was corrected retrospectively.

NOTES TO THE AuDITED ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEmENTS

Statement of f inancial position

Property  plant and equipment - 342 994

Receivables from exchange transactions - 7 753 179

Recalled Grant Funds - 6 691 527

Provisions - Interest earned capitalisation - (1 572 211)

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit - (365 947)

Statement of Financial Performance

Consolidated Capital Grant recoveries - (11 917 200)

Programme costs - (4 120 172)

Impairment - 4 164 021

Professional fees - (894 272)

Legal fees - (81 919)

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:
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Detailed Income statement

DETAIl INCOmE STATEmENT

Revenue Note(s) 31 March 2020
R

31 March 2019
Restated

R

Government Grants 12 810 726 000 825 752 000

Other income

Recoveries 54 948 156 11 197 200

Interest received 16 20 891 846 51 144 378

75 840 002 62 341 578

Operating expenses

Advertising (2 283 456) (2 254 123)

Audit fees - External and internal (965 267) (1 719 842)

Bank charges (48 670) (47 405)

Cleaning (171 296) (183 129)

Computer  IT and website hosting expenses (576 573) (778 861)

Council remuneration (1 799 010) (2 329 068)

Depreciation and amortisation (1 637 185) (1 184 704)

Donations - (127 674)

Employee costs (39 894 394) (35 814 188)

Entertainment (15 897) (39 139)

Impairment (542 803) (4 164 021)

Revenue Note(s) 31 March 2020
R

31 March 2019
Restated

R

Insurance (104 861) (109 413)

Lease rentals on operating lease (4 202 422) (3 910 812)

Legal expenses (7 737 806) (3 355 345)

Loss on disposal of assets (82 319) (569 723)

Motor vehicle expenses (30 779) (21 203)

Postage  printing and stationery (63 687) (76 756)

Preservation costs (372 600) -

Printing and stationery (496 671) (730 061)

Professional fees (12 414 180) (15 352 011)

Programme cost (1 216 473 174) (784 936 595)

Repairs and maintenance (28 385) (68 037)

Research and development costs - (56 521)

Staff welfare (508 308) (447 434)

Subscriptions (201 282) (82 366)

Telephone and fax (457 097) (537 409)

Training and workshops (3 778 765) (2 017 718)

Travel (3 899 140) (3 920 990)

Utilities (1 168 811) (719 775)

(1 299 954 838) (865 554 323)

(Deficit) surplus for the year (413 388 836) 22 539 255

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the audited annual 
financial statements and is unaudited.



AANNExuRE
Performance against

the programme’s
annual indicators



138 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 139 SHRA ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Annexure A - Performance against the programme’s annual indicators

No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

1 Supporting Strategic Goal 1: To establish a well-skilled, resourced and led organisation

1.1 Audit outcome 
on previous year’s 
f inancial and 
non-f inancial 
performance 
information.

Unqualif ied audit – 
with no matters of 
emphasisv

Unqualif ied Audit- 
with one matter of 
emphasis

Clean audit outcome SHRA received an 
unqualif ied audit 
opinion for 2018/19

Clean audit outcome 
(on 2019/20)

Clean audit outcome 
(on 2020/21)

SHRA received an 
unqualif ied audit opinion 
with emphasis of matter, 
non-compliance with 
legislation, material 
f indings on the usefulness 
and reliability of reported 
performance information as 
well as irregular expenditure. 
Going forward management 
will attend to the Audit 
Corrective Action in order 
to reduce the number 
of matters raised by the 
external auditors in the 
Annual Audit report for 2020. 
Management has reported 
against this corrective action 
document and one matter is 
still outstanding.

1.1.1 Percentage variance 
on total approved 
budget vs. actual 
expenditure 
(operational and 
capital) per annum

71% variance on total 
approved budget vs. 
actual expenditure

40% variance on total 
approved budget vs. 
actual expenditure

15% variance on total 
approved budget vs. 
actual expenditure

A positive 4.53% 
on total approved 
budget vs. actual 
expenditure

5% variance on total 
approved budget vs. 
actual expenditure

5% variance on total 
approved budget vs. 
actual expenditure

The total variance on total 
approved budget including 
reallocated interest and 
accumulated surplus vs 
actual expenditure is 10.47% 
against a target of 15%, this is 
largely attributable to year-
end provision of debtors 
arising from cancelled CCG 
contracts amounting to 
approximately R35m.
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

1 Supporting Strategic Goal 1: To establish a well-skilled, resourced and led organisation

1.1.2 Percentage 
procurement spend 
to majority black 
owned or controlled 
service providers 
(>50% black)

New indicator 60 % procurement 
to majority or 
controlled service
 providers

65% procurement 
spend to majority 
black owned or 
controlled service 
providers

92.83% procurement 
spend to majority 
black owned or 
controlled service 
providers (>50% 
black)

70% procurement 
spend to majority 
black owned or 
controlled service 
providers

75% procurement 
spend to majority 
black owned or 
controlled service 
providers

There is a positive variance 
of 27.83%. Management 
had consciously sought to 
appoint service providers 
that were level 1 and 2 
B-BBEE compliant.

1.1.3 Percentage 
procurement spend 
to the collective of 
service providers 
that are majority 
owned by women, 
youth, persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans 

New indicator 30% procurement 
spend to the 
collective of service 
providers that are 
majority owned 
by women, youth, 
persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

44.45% procurement 
spend to the 
collective of service 
providers that are 
majority owned 
by women, youth, 
persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

30% procurement 
spend to the 
collective of service 
providers that are 
majority owned 
by women, youth, 
persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

30% procurement 
spend to the 
collective of service 
providers that are 
majority owned 
by women, youth, 
persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

There is a positive variance 
of 14.45% due to this 
being raised as a strategic 
imperative by the SHRA 
Council. Management had 
actively sought to   appoint 
service providers that 
were level 1 and 2 B-BBEE 
compliant with emphasis on 
those service providers that 
are owned by women, youth, 
persons with disabilities and 
military veterans

1.1.4 Percentage overall 
organisational 
performance rating 
(AG standard ³ 80%)

78% overall 
organisational 
performance rating

62% overall 
organisational 
performance rating

 ≥ 80% overall 
organisational 
performance rating

67% overall 
organisational 
performance rating

≥ 80% overall 
organisational 
performance rating

≥ 80% overall 
organisational 
performance rating

There is a negative variance 
of 13%.  This is due to non-
achievement of four (4) 
indicators relating to, 
Publishing of the State of the 
Sector Report, Conducting 
of Building Condition Audits 
and, the completion of 
Social Housing Units and 
the Awarding of CCG in 
the year to ODAs not being 
achieved. While this is an 
improvement on the prior 
year’s achievement of 62%, 
going forward, management 
will strive to manage the 
dependencies that exist 
on indicators such as these 
and ensure that targets 
are appropriately planned 
and implemented in order 
to achieve the 80% overall 
organisational rating as per 
AG standards in the new 
f inancial year 2020/21.
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

2 Supporting Strategic Goal 2: To support policy and sectoral leadership within the social 
housing sector

2.1 End of term 
submission of 
Social Housing 
Sector inputs for 
consideration in the 
development of the 
forthcoming MTSF

New indicator Submission of 
social housing 
sector inputs to 
the Department of 
Human Settlements 
for consideration of 
the 2019/20 MTSF, by 
Q2 2019/20

End-of-term MTSF 
submission made in 
Q2 and regular sector 
feedback provided 
throughout the year

No variance

2.1.1 Timeline for 
publishing the 
Annual State of 
the Social Housing 
Sector Report of the 
previous f inancial 
year

2016/17 State of 
the Social Housing 
Sector Report 
published in Q2

2017/18 State of 
the Social Housing 
Sector Report 
published in Q2

2018/19 State of 
the Social Housing 
Sector Report 
published in Q2 

2018/19 State of 
the Social Housing 
Sector Report was 
not published in Q2 

2019/20 State of 
the Social Housing 
Sector Report 
published in Q2

2020/21 State of 
the Social Housing 
Sector Report 
published in Q2

The 2018/19 State of the 
Sector Report was not 
published in Q2 which has 
led to the annual target 
not being achieved. This 
was due to limited internal 
capacity and availability 
of information needed to 
f inalise the report. Going 
forward management will 
ensure that there is suff icient 
capacity to meet the target.

2.1.2 Timeline for the 
serving of a Student 
Housing Programme 
proposal at MinMec

New indicator Student Housing 
Programme proposal 
to serve at MinMec 
by the end of Q2

Council Approved 
Proposal routed 
for Minister’s 
consideration. 

As a result of a decision 
made by the National 
Department of Human 
Settlements’ Executive 
Management Team (EMT), 
it was decided that the 
SHRA Student Housing 
proposal be considered 
by the Minister who has 
administrative authority to 
deal with the matter, and not 
MinMEC. Going forward, the 
SHRA will aim to manage 
indicator dependencies on 
the National Department of 
Human Settlements through 
deepening the consultative 
process.
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

2 Supporting Strategic Goal 2: To support policy and sectoral leadership within the social 
housing sector

2.2 Percentage 
improvement in 
Biennial Stakeholder 
Perception Rating

Stakeholder 
Perception Survey 
Conducted

Biennial stakeholder 
perception survey 
conducted in 
2019/20, reported in 
Q4

Stakeholder 
perception survey 
conducted and 
tabled at Exco during 
the period under 
review

Biennial Stakeholder 
Perception Survey 
conducted in 2021/22, 
reported in Q4, with 
target to improve the 
baseline stakeholder 
perception rating by 
10%

No variance

2.2.1 Percentage 
achievement of the 
milestones of the 
annually approved 
stakeholder relations 
management plan

- New Indicator 80% achievement 
of the milestones 
of the approved 
stakeholder relations 
management plan

80% of planned 
activities were 
achieved against the 
quarterly target.

80% achievement 
of the milestones 
of the approved 
stakeholder relations 
management plan

80% achievement 
of the milestones 
of the approved 
stakeholder relations 
management plan

No Variance
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 2: COMPLIANCE, ACCREDITATION AND REGULATION (CAR)

4 Supporting Strategic Goal: To effectively regulate the social housing sector through a 
risk-based, automated system

4.1 Percentage of 
reporting SHI’s and 
ODA’s with units 
under regulation 
that meet 5 out of 
5 of the primary 
benchmarks* per 
annum

New indicator

Baseline = 42% (11/26) 
of reporting SHI’s 
and ODA’s with units 
under regulation 
that meet 3 out of 
5 of the primary 
benchmarks

61.5% (16/26) of 
reporting SHI’s and 
ODA’s with units 
under regulation 
that meet 3 out of 
5 of the primary 
benchmarks

61.5% of reporting 
SHIs and ODAs 
with units under 
regulation that meet 
3 out of 5 of the 
primary benchmarks

69% of reporting 
SHI’s and ODA’s 
with units under 
regulation that meet 
3 out of 5 of the 
primary benchmarks

(77%) of reporting 
SHI’s and ODA’s 
with units under 
regulation that meet 
3 out of 5 of the 
primary benchmarks

No Variance. 12 out of the 
26 reporting SHIs and 
ODAs with units under 
regulation met 3 out of the 5 
benchmarks, and 4 out of the 
26 reporting SHIs and ODAs 
with units under regulation 
met 4 out of 5 of the primary 
benchmarks, totalling 16 out 
of the 26 SHIs and ODAs that 
met at least three out of f ive 
of the benchmarks

4.1.1 Number of fully 
accredited Social 
Housing Institutions 
(cumulative)

13 fully accredited 
SHI’s

12 fully accredited 
SHI’s

13 fully accredited 
SHI’s

12 fully accredited 
SHIs

15 fully accredited 
SHI’s

17 fully accredited 
SHI’s

A negative variance of 
one. This is due to the 
accreditation process 
that might not have been 
understood by applicants. 
The CAR Programme 
will invest resources to 
educate the sector on the 
accreditation process

4.1.2 Number of 
subsidised social 
housing units' 
tenancy audits 
(including tenancy 
surveys) conducted 
per annum

- New indicator
Baseline = 3 200 
subsidised social 
housing units’ 
tenancy audits 
conducted

3 300 subsidised 
social housing units’ 
tenancy audits 
conducted

3 406 subsidised 
social housing units 
were audited

3 300 subsidised 
social housing units' 
tenancy audits 
conducted

3 300 subsidised 
social housing units' 
tenancy audits 
conducted

A positive variance of 106 
tenancy audits conducted.  
As at end March 2020 audits 
have been conducted on 12 
projects totalling 3728 units, 
consisting of 3557 tenants 
(i.e. excluding vacancies).       
A consolidated dataset that 
includes income information 
of 3406 social housing units 
have been validated and 
captured
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 2: COMPLIANCE, ACCREDITATION AND REGULATION (CAR)

4 Supporting Strategic Goal: To effectively regulate the social housing sector through a 
risk-based, automated system

4.1.3 Number of 
subsidised social 
housing units' 
building condition 
audits conducted per 
annum

New indicator
Baseline = 0 
subsidised social 
housing units’ 
building condition 
audits conducted

3 300 subsidised 
social housing units’ 
building condition 
audits conducted

3083 subsidised 
social housing units' 
building condition 
audits conducted

3 300 subsidised 
social housing units' 
building condition 
audits conducted

3 300 subsidised 
social housing units' 
building condition 
audits conducted

A negative variance of 217 
units not completed by 
end of March 2020.    This 
was due to the fact that 
SHRA appointed service 
providers were prevented 
from entering projects 
during March 2020. The 
effected audits were Steve 
Tshwete Housing Association 
where the landlord delayed 
in providing the necessary 
information; Yeast City 
Housing where the landlord 
indicated that they were 
delayed by other audits; 
and the Ekurhuleni Housing 
Company where the landlord 
was managing a conflict with 
their tenants and could not 
secure access. Going forward 
the balance of the audits will 
be completed during the 
2020/2021 f inancial year.

4.2 Cumulative number 
of social housing 
units accredited 
(approved for capital 
grant funding) over 
the 2015-2020 period

14 526 social housing 
units accredited 

(Annual: 6 018)

22 182social housing 
units accredited

(Annual: 7 656)

28026 social housing 
units accredited

(Annual Est.: 7 000)

27 042 cumulative 
number of social 
housing units 
accredited over the 
2015-2020 period

(Annual 4 860)

35 026 social housing 
units accredited

(Annual Est.: 7 000)

42 026 social housing 
units accredited
(Annual Est.: 7 000)

A negative variance of 984 
units having been accredited 
(96% of the target). This 
is due to the fact that the 
majority of projects that 
applied for accreditation 
did not achieve project 
readiness status and this 
resulted these projects not 
going forward through 
to approval stage. Going 
forward, further project 
facilitation and support work 
will be undertaken to ensure 
that these projects can be 
accredited by the fourth 
quarter of 2020/2021
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 2: COMPLIANCE, ACCREDITATION AND REGULATION (CAR)

4 Supporting Strategic Goal: To effectively regulate the social housing sector through a 
risk-based, automated system

4.2.1 Number of project 
applications 
received into the 
project pipeline 
by conditionally 
accredited f irst-time 
applicants

New indicator
Baseline Estimate:
6 for the year – 10 in 
total (cumulative)

8 project 
applications 
received into the 
project pipeline 
by conditionally 
accredited f irst-time 
applicants

6 project applications 
received into the 
project pipeline 
by conditionally 
accredited f irst-time 
applicants

10 project 
applications 
received into the 
project pipeline 
by conditionally 
accredited f irst-time 
applicants

12 project 
applications 
received into the 
project pipeline 
by conditionally 
accredited f irst-time 
applicants

A negative variance of 2 
projects.  Most conditionally 
accredited SHIs do not 
necessarily have access 
to land, which would 
lead them to submitting 
projects for accreditation.    
Communication and 
information dissemination 
work will be conducted 
in the 2020/2021 f inancial 
year, to educate potential 
applicants on the 
accreditation process 
and requirements.   The 
accreditation policy has also 
been revised, to include 
access to land as criteria for 
obtaining accreditation.

4.2.2 Percentage of 
projects in the 
pipeline that are 
from capital grant 
applicants that 
are black majority 
owned or controlled 
(>50% black)

New indicator 
Baseline = 60% 
of projects in the 
pipeline are from 
capital grant 
applicants that 
are black majority 
owned or controlled

65% of projects in 
the pipeline are 
from capital grant 
applicants that 
are black majority 
owned or controlled

68% of projects in 
the pipeline are 
from capital grant 
applicants that are 
black majority owned 
or controlled

70% of projects in 
the pipeline are 
from capital grant 
applicants that are 
black majority owned 
or controlled

75% of projects in 
the pipeline are 
from capital grant 
applicants that are 
black majority owned 
or controlled

A positive variance of 3%.    
26 of the 38 projects in the 
pipeline are form capital 
grant applicants that are 
black majority owned or 
controlled.

4.3 65% of projects in 
the pipeline are 
from capital grant 
applicants that 
are black majority 
owned or controlled

32 046 units under 
regulation

36 305 units under 
regulation 
(Annual 4 259)

38 288 social 
housing units under 
regulation
(Annual 4 000)

39 407 Cumulative 
number of units 
under regulation

42 288 units under 
regulation
(Annual Est.: 4 000)

46 288 units under 
regulation
(Annual Est.: 4 000)

A positive variance of 1 119 
units. The number of units 
under regulations grew to 
39 407 as at the end of the 
fourth quarter.
The increase in units under 
regulation are due to an 
increased number of projects 
being accredited as well 
as improved reporting by 
delivery agents as a result 
of training on reporting 
requirement by the 
Compliance unit.

4.3.1 Number of 
Institutional Housing 
Subsidy projects 
brought under 
regulation

New indicator 6 x Institutional 
Subsidy projects 
with a management 
agreement 
concluded with an 
accredited SHI or 
ODA

4 x Institutional 
Housing Subsidy 
projects brought 
under regulation

5 x Institutional 
Housing Subsidy 
projects brought 
under regulation

4 x Institutional 
Housing Subsidy 
projects brought 
under regulation

4 x Institutional 
Housing Subsidy 
projects brought 
under regulation

Positive variance of 1 due 
to the Constitutional Court 
ruling against Cape Town 
Community Housing 
Company where projects 
are now brought back under 
regulation and reported on.
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 3: SECTOR DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSFORMATION (SD&T)

3 Supporting Strategic Goal: To establish functioning and well managed delivery agents/
entities delivering units that meet a landlord’s responsibilities to its tenants

3.1 Percentage of 
pre-selected SHI’s 
and/or ODA’s 
without accredited 
projects supported 
annually through 
a customised 
incubation 
programme to 
have projects in the 
pipeline by the end 
of the f inancial year

- New indicator
(Pilot Incubation 
Programme with 10 x 
SHI’s)

50% (5/10) of 
Incubation 
programme 
participants with 
projects in the 
pipeline by the end 
of the f inancial year

50% (5/10) selected 
institutions have 
projects in the 
pipeline by the end 
of the f inancial year

60% of incubation 
programme 
participants with 
projects in the 
pipeline by the end 
of the f inancial year

70% of incubation 
programme 
participants with 
projects in the 
pipeline by the end 
of the f inancial year

No variance

3.1.1 Percentage of 
identif ied SHI’s 
that received 
an IIG, of which 
the intervention 
is completed 
within the current 
f inancial year, either 
maintained or 
improved their
level of accreditation

100% SHIs 
maintained or 
improved their level 
of accreditation

100% SHIs 
maintained or 
improved their level 
of accreditation

82.5% SHI’s 
maintained or 
improved their level 
of accreditation

100% (2/2) SHI's 
maintained their 
level of accreditation

85% SHI’s maintained 
or improved their 
level of accreditation

87.5% SHI’s 
maintained or 
improved their level 
of accreditation

Positive variance of 17.5%, 
due to maintained levels of 
accreditation of both SHI's 
where support interventions 
were completed

3.1.2 Percentage of 
identif ied projects 
that received an 
IIG, of which the 
work is completed 
within the current 
f inancial year, are 
recommended to the 
TEC for capital grant 
award

100% projects 
recommended to the 
TEC for capital grant 
award

75% projects 
recommended to the 
TEC for capital grant 
award

77.5% projects 
recommended to the 
TEC for capital grant 
award

100% (4/4) projects 
recommended to the 
TEC for capital grant 
award

80% projects 
recommended to the 
TEC for capital grant 
award

82.5% projects 
recommended to the 
TEC for capital grant 
award

Positive variance of 22.5% 
due to project support 
work focusing on project 
technical readiness and 
f inancial feasibility to achieve 
recommendations to the TEC 
for capital grant award

3.1.3 Percentage of 
Institutional 
Investment Grant 
(IIG) recipients that 
are majority black 
owned or controlled

- New indicator 65% of IIG recipients 
are majority black 
owned or controlled

70% (21/30) of IIG 
recipients are 
majority black owned 
or controlled

70% of IIG recipients 
are majority black 
owned or controlled

75% of IIG recipients 
are majority black 
owned or controlled

Positive variance of 5% due 
to continuous engagement 
with IIG recipients to validate 
B-BBEE status as per 
evidence requirements
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 3: SECTOR DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSFORMATION (SD&T)

3 Supporting Strategic Goal: To establish functioning and well managed delivery agents/
entities delivering units that meet a landlord’s responsibilities to its tenants

3.2 Percentage of grant 
recipients that have 
adopted the Social 
Housing Sector 
Transformation 
Charter by the end of 
the 5-year planning 
period

- New indicator 50% of grant 
recipients have 
adopted the Social 
Housing Sector 
Transformation 
Charter by the end of 
the 2019/20 f inancial 
year

57% (30/53) of 
grant recipients 
adopted the Social 
Housing Sector 
Transformation 
Charter

Positive variance of 7% due 
to continuous engagement 
with grant recipients to 
adopt the Social Housing 
Sector Transformation 
Charter

3.2.1 Timeline for 
production of 
the annual social 
housing sector 
transformation 
dashboard and 
report 

- New indicator Annual social 
housing sector 
transformation 
dashboard and 
report produced in 
Q4

Annual social 
housing sector 
transformation 
dashboard and 
report produced in 
Q4

Annual social 
housing sector 
transformation 
dashboard and 
report produced in 
Q4

Annual social 
housing sector 
transformation 
dashboard and 
report produced in 
Q4

No variance
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 4: PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND FUNDING

5 Supporting Strategic Objective: To deliver social housing units that result in the 
restructuring of cities and integrated communities

5.1 Cumulative number 
of social housing 
units completed 
between 2014/15 and 
2019/20

11 684 units 
completed
(Annual 3 519)

13 968 units 
completed
(Annual 2 284)

19 584 units 
completed
(Annual Est: 4 871)

16 978 cumulative 
number of social 
housing units 
completed between 
2014/15 and 2019/20
(Annual 3 010)

25 548 Social housing 
units completed 
(Annual: 4 871)

32 584 Social housing 
units completed 
(Annual 6 714)

Negative variance of               
2 606 social housing units 
completed. This is due to:

A) blocked projects which 
have not broken ground 12 
months since approval of 
the project due to the grant 
recipient not achieving 
contractual conditions 
precedent;

B) CCG cancellations of 
contracts due to non-
performance which would 
otherwise have delivered 
units,

C) Projection of unit 
completion which had either 
not materialised or fewer 
than projected units had 
been completed from the 
following projects:

o Qhama
o Hlalanathi
o Goldenwest
o Hillside View
o Townlands
o Carnival Gardens
o Mogale Junction; and

D) Grant Recipients’ 
challenges with their 
professional team, the 
impact of the construction 
mafia, community unrests 
resulting in the interruption 
and stoppages on 
construction sites, the global 
impact of COVID 19 felt in 
March 2020.

PD&F will review each 
non-performing project’s 
recovery plans, planned 
cashflow and resources on-
site. The blocked projects 
are receiving specif ic 
intervention to resolve 
the challenges including 
contract administration in 
line with CCG agreements.
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 4: PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND FUNDING

5 Supporting Strategic Objective: To deliver social housing units that result in the 
restructuring of cities and integrated communities

5.1.1 Number of social 
housing units 
delivered (tenanted)

New Indicator
Baseline of 4 500 
social housing units 
delivered (tenanted)

2 471 social housing 
units tenanted

4 000 social housing 
units delivered 
(tenanted)

4 012 social housing 
units delivered 
(tenanted)

5 000 social housing 
units delivered 
(tenanted)

6 000 social housing 
units delivered 
(tenanted)

Positive variance of 12 social 
housing units tenanted.   
Portfolio Managers pursued 
projects where tenanting 
was projected and, in many 
instances, received more 
units than projected which 
have been verif ied by 
CAR.  The outlook is great 
in that units completed 
in the current year will be 
managed to meet tenancy in 
the 2020/21 FY to meet the 
delivery target.

5.1.2 Percentage of annual 
Consolidated Capital 
Grant allocation 
awarded to Other 
Delivery Agents

15% of Consolidated 
Capital Grant 
allocation for 2017/18 
f inancial year 
awarded to Other 
Delivery Agencies 
within the 2017/18 
f inancial year

174% (R1 297 251 
029.00) of the CCG 
has been awarded to 
ODA’s in the 2018\19 
FY

25% annual CCG 
allocation awarded 
to ODA’s

9% of the annual CCG 
allocated to ODAs

30% annual CCG 
allocation awarded 
to ODA’s

33% annual CCG 
allocation awarded 
to ODA’s

Negative 16% variance of 
the annual CCG awarded 
to ODAs.  Of the total CCG 
award (R1 194 442 337) to 
13 Grant Recipients,3 were 
ODAs totalling an award of 
R107.66m for the 2019.20 FY.

This target was not 
achieved as the onward 
recommendation and 
approval of 8 projects by 
ODAs that were pre-assessed 
by the SHRA totalling 3505 
social housing units and a 
GGC value of R952 893 835. 
had not materialised by the 
4th quarter. 

Going forward, the SHRA will 
actively pursue projects from 
ODAs to meet the 2020/21 
target and consider project 
accreditation enhancements 
that could assist in achieving 
this target.
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No Performance 
indicator

Audited/actual performance Annual Target Annual Actual Medium-Term targets Variance and comments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

PROGRAMME 4: PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND FUNDING

5 Supporting Strategic Objective: To deliver social housing units that result in the 
restructuring of cities and integrated communities

5.1.3 Percentage of 
Consolidated 
Capital Grant (CCG) 
allocation awarded 
to black majority 
owned / controlled 

182.7% (R1,555 868 
352) against a target 
of 50%

205.56% of the 
CCG for 2018/19 
FY have been 
awarded to BBBEE 
Owned/Controlled 
companies. 
R1 528 598 818.00 
against an annual 
budget
of R743 640 000.00

65% of CCG 
allocation awarded 
to black majority 
owned / controlled 
enterprises (>50% 
black)

95.45% of the CCG 
allocation awarded 
to black majority 
owned / controlled 
enterprises (>50% 
black)

70% of CCG 
allocation awarded 
to black majority 
owned / controlled 
enterprises (>50% 
black)

75% of CCG 
allocation awarded 
to black majority 
owned / controlled 
enterprises (>50% 
black)

Positive 30.45% variance of 
the CCG allocation awarded 
to black majority owned/
controlled enterprises (>50% 
black).  

Of the total 13 CCG awarded 
to grant recipients (totalling 
R1 194 442 337) the majority 
were black owned and 
controlled with 12 grant 
recipients registered as level 
1 and 2 B-BBEE contributors 
having been granted CCG 
contracts amounting to 
R1 124 300 651 for the year 
under review.

Going forward the SHRA 
will continue to encourage 
project applications by 
transformed applicants.

5.1.4 Percentage of 
Consolidated 
Capital Grant (CCG) 
allocation awarded 
to the collective 
of enterprises 
designated as 
majority owned 
or controlled by 
women, youth, 
persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

New indicator 30% of CCG 
allocation awarded 
to the collective 
of enterprises 
designated as 
majority owned 
or controlled by 
women, youth, 
persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

40.26% of the CCG 
allocation awarded 
to the collective 
of enterprises 
designated as 
majority owned or 
controlled by women, 
youth, persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

30% of CCG 
allocation awarded 
to the collective 
of enterprises 
designated as 
majority owned or 
controlled by women, 
youth, persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

30% of CCG 
allocation awarded 
to the collective 
of enterprises 
designated as 
majority owned or 
controlled by women, 
youth, persons with 
disabilities and 
military veterans

Positive 10.26% variance of 
CCG allocation awarded to 
the collective of enterprises 
designated as majority 
owned or controlled by 
women, youth, persons with 
disabilities and military 
veterans.  

Of the 13 accredited projects, 
4 grant recipients were 
entities that were majority 
owned/controlled by 
designated groups with a 
CCG value of R480.66m out 
of the total R1 194.4m of CCG 
awarded for the year.

The SHRA will continue 
to actively promote 
applications from entities 
that are owned or controlled 
by the collective of 
enterprises designated as 
majority owned or controlled 
by women, youth, persons 
with disabilities and military 
veterans.
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AFS Annual Financial Statements

APP Annual Performance Plan

B-BBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

BNG Breaking New Ground

CCG Consolidated Capital Grant

CEO Chief Executive Off icer

CoJ City of Johannesburg

CP Conditions Precedent

CSOS Community Schemes Ombud Service

CRU Community Residential Unit

CSM Corporate Services Manager

EXCO Executive Committee

FC Financial Closure

HDA Housing Development Agency

HR Human Resources

IDP Integrated Development Plan

IRC Independent Review Consultant

IS Institutional Subsidy

ICT Information Communication Technology

IT Information Technology

JDA Johannesburg Development Agency

JOSHCO Johannesburg Social Housing Company

MINMEC Minister and Members of the Executive Council

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF Medium Term Strategic Framework

NASHO National Association of Social Housing Organisations

NRHTT National Rental Housing Task Team

NDoHSWS National Department of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation

NDP National Development Plan

NHFC National Housing Finance Corporation

NRHTT National Rental Housing Task Team

NSHP National Social Housing Programme

OD Organisation Development

ODA Other Delivery Agents

PFMA Public Finance Management Act, No. 29 of 1999

PSC Provincial Steering Committee

RCG Restructuring Capital Grant

SALGA South African Local Government Association

SAQA South African Qualif ications Authority

SAWIC South African Women in Construction

SDF Spatial Development Framework

SHI Social Housing Institution

SHIP Social Housing Investment Programme

SHRA Social Housing Regulatory Authority

TEC Technical Evaluation Committee
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